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CALENDAR

H i

EVENT

Announcement of interim results
Interim special dividend at
HK®B.0 cents per share paid
Announcement of annual results
Despatch of annual report to
shareholders
Closure of register of members for
ascertaining shareholders’ right to
attend and vote at annual general
meeting

Annual general meeting

Closure of register of members
for ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final
dividend

Final dividend at HK21.0 cents per
share payable

DATE

25 August 2016
30 December 2016

29 March 2017
28 April 2017

29 May 2017 to 2 June 2017
(both days inclusive)

2 June 2017
8 June 2017

31 Jduly 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B2

On behalf of the board, | would like to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Amid rapid changes in the consumption market as well as the market
structure of the food and beverage sector in China, a diversified brand
portfolio development has become a necessity. More importantly, the
variety of consumption pattern has brought substantial impact and
opportunities to the industry. Over the years, the Group has adhered
to its principle and remained committed to the provision of quality
dining experience to the customers with continuous improvement on
internal management and efficiency. We make timely adjustments to
our development strategy in accordance with market demands and
prepare and plan ahead for the future. It allows us to achieve stable
development despite market uncertainties and expand our business
when opportunities arise. The Group is delighted with its outstanding
results in 2016, with annual revenue posting a 14.7% growth over
last year and profit attributable to owners of the Company exceeding
RMB100 million.

The splendid performance in 2016 was what the Group aimed to
achieve with its relentless efforts. Outlets established when rental
rates were stabilizing in the second half of 2015 began to generate
profit for the Group in 2016 and the refined management model over
the years started to bear fruits. For the Chinese restaurant business,
the sales strategy focused on a more precise pursuit of objectives
and a more comprehensive and active market approach to boost
consumption per capita. Continuous increase of the sales of the
membership card to expand and provide stable income stream. All
help to maintain the business growth of each segment.

The Group saw the enormous potential of e-commerce and
commenced its cooperation with online commerce platforms
years ago. In 2015, take-away delivery platform underwent rapid
development. In light of this, we launched on several delivery
platforms to ride on the trend for further expansion in 2016. Due
to positive market reception, the Group will continue to develop
the business, which is expected to generate stable revenue for the
Group.

Overall profit margin of the Group improved significantly in 2016,
which was attributable to our determination on executing the bulk
purchase strategy, continuous improvement on internal procedures
and the value added tax reforms implemented in May 2016 in China.
The Group will continue to enhance the bulk purchase system for
better cost control and study the feasibility of regional subordinate
central kitchen to boost outlet efficiency. Other costs are kept under
reasonable levels and the Group will endeavour to maintain and
strengthen its cost control ability.
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The business development of our self-developed casual dining
brands, Social Place and Canton Tea Room, has been encouraging
and filled the Group with extra confidence. Following the establishment
of new outlets in both PRC and Hong Kong in 2016, further business
expansion is underway in 2017 and suitable locations have been
identified to facilitate the set-up of outlets in various regions.

The Group had also been fairly active in forging strategic cooperation
and strategic investment during the Year. An investment was made in
C. Y. Food Trading (HK) Company Limited, a quality trading company
engaging in food-related business in May 2016, while a sale and
purchase agreement was entered into with Dragon King Holdings
Limited in June 2016. With the various modes of cooperation we had
adopted, the Group intended to achieve synergy by integrating the
strengths of the Group and our cooperating partners, thereby laying a
solid foundation for our future development.

At the very beginning, the Group had already realized the importance
of sustainable development of business when we first commenced
our operation. We set out the long-term goal of transforming
ourselves into an enterprise that embraces and practices continued
learning. The Group places great emphasis on talent development
and advancing of internal management. As early as in 1990s, we
had introduced various kinds of training programs to all employees,
from the ground level to the senior management and from back office
personnel to frontline staff. The Group was a pioneer in the market
in pursuing for continued development of staff, providing a wide
spectrum of training and development, from earlier ones that were
mostly on technical and skill aspects, to those in recent time that
focused on mental strength. The disclosures of our Environmental,
Social and Governance Report in 2016 represented a step forward in
our effort in current policy review and future development objectives
setting. The Group is fully committed to advocate and participate
more in initiatives that contribute to the environmental and social
causes.

During the financial year, after careful consideration and based on the
satisfactory results and solid financial position, the board wishes to
share the success with the shareholders and proposes a payment of
final dividend of HK21 cents. Along with the declared interim special
dividend, it represents a dividend pay-out of 100.8%.

2017 marks the important milestone of the 25th anniversary of the
Group. We will organise various celebrating activities to share the
joy with the customers. We will cope with upcoming challenges in
a prudent manner and hope to enter a new era to achieve better
results.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
and appreciation to the management and staff for their dedication
during the year. | would also like to thank the Group’s shareholders,
customers, suppliers, business partners and government authorities
for their continued trust and support over the years.

YIP Shu Ming
Chairman

29 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

18 BEIJING A S ) 6 SHENZHEN i @

o175 U 8 e Ayt B 14 i'il;gNGHAl g.?&#gs ©) Sy 20909090 CTRaaEEen
2z 1 2z 1
:WP JJJJ '? ( ) | %.? (3) m.gm:? ( )
= EEER (1) E:Egﬁﬁ @ @ (1)
i ) " . @
Bl
4T ey w ®un o 2 e @
ey Ee ) 1 Y axwme o
& o DRCCUAN mwipaas o)
SO mwi s ()

g

N



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i S oy e

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Despite fluctuations in the global economy in 2016, the economy of
China remained relatively stable. According to the statistics as of 31
December 2016 published by the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, gross domestic product grew by 6.7% over the corresponding
period last year. As set out in “Commentary on 2016 Statistical
Bulletin” published by the National Bureau of Statistics, amid a stable
economy in general, the source of economic growth have been
changing from capital input oriented growth in the past, to the current
increase in end-user consumption with a contribution rate of over
64%.

The growth of national income of food and beverage sector also
reflects the close relationship between this sector and the economic
conditions. The national income of food and beverage sector for
2016 experienced a solid year-on-year growth of 10.8%. In prior
years, plagued by economic uncertainties, the sector has been
responsive to changes in a challenging environment. While the entire
structure and business model of the market have been revamped, we
have been active in making adjustments and transformations in the
past two years. As the growth momentum recovers, the sector has
entered a stage of stable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved satisfactory results in a challenging market
environment. For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of
the Group amounted to RMB1,248 million, representing an increase
of 14.7% when compared to the year ended 31 December 2015.
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company recorded a
breakthrough of topping RMB100 million.

The increase of overall revenue was attributable to a consistent
development strategy over the years and a prudent manner in
response to rapid changes in the market. Its development goals
had always adhered to market changes to capture opportunities
for expansion in a timely manner. While the bleak economic outlook
in 2015 led to a cautious market, the Group was decisive enough
to seize the opportunity of rental downturn and open five Chinese
restaurants and two casual dining restaurants in the second half
of 2015, which were in good operation conditions and started
to generate profits for the Group in 2016. After several years of
operation, the casual dining business has been recording decent
growth, among which, the development of “Social Place” has been
particularly satisfactory. The brand was first introduced to Mainland
China in 2015 and three additional outlets were established in 2016.
Their operation conditions were in line with the Group’s expectation.

The membership card has been popular ever since its introduction
at the end of 2012 and experienced stable growth in the number of
cards sold, which were more than double in 2016 when compared
to last year. The membership card allowed for extensive promotions
in regions complemented by new dishes, seasonal foods, festive
celebrations and local exclusive offerings, thereby attracting new
customers and fortifying the existing customer base for the Group.

As the Group’s business expansion cannot solely rely on boosting
the turnover of restaurants, the Group also seeks to expand its
income stream, as an important strategy of the Group. Given the
rapid development of the internet in the past two years, the food and
beverage sector expanded its business through a brand-new channel
and the surge of online retail shall not be overlooked. According to
the statistics published by the National Bureau of Statistics, online
retail in 2016 grew by over 26% when compared to 2015 and the
growth of food products exceeded 28%, highlighting the potential
of online sales development of the sector. The Group believes that
active online expansion is going to be crucial and has established
cooperation with leading e-commerce operators in different regions,
such as “Dianping.com” (KA Bi&F), “Waimai.baidu.com” (F EEANE ),
“Daojia.com.cn” (| £ ) and “Ele.me” (f 1 )i ), with a view to
diversifying income source and boosting business growth. The Group

= 11

O BHL R o i M o T

EBOE

SENFRIBNTEREDESSAZHD
KAE - BE_ZFT—R"ET-_A=+—RHLFE
SEMWSEEARK1248B 8T HHL—-F
—HETZA=T—BIEFEET147% - T4
ANH AR RIHEA AREENTRBEARE —E

7T|:o

FERBUEN A ARZEFRENERR
B —ENAFRENEEREMISNSERE(L
BROBIZTERZERMISHE - AREITE
RIFFHEEBEGNE - —Z—AFREBERAMD

ATER - MGHRBERER SEEAH
i BEHEENEZRE  RZZE—AF T+
FohIFR Tﬁ%qﬂﬁ/@*&ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁfﬁﬁf
BEMR—BEEE TR T NEFHRIEESE

REBSRFERR Eyiﬁu/kﬁ?‘)?wkﬁ'ﬁ
B XB—EHESTMEMER - LATES/D

BIBERSAME - _T—AFEAEREE
EAH G MZF /\iilﬁmi"“T RE

B 2SRRI AEN -

g8RBZ _Eﬁfﬁﬁfé Eﬁx%‘%@
%Fi E%HF BR —F-—RF &R

Ttl:iifu@-% " & é-ﬂ:*ﬁxﬁ(p& %8 AT
T&J% AR BSHERE - TRESA R
ol IR ﬁﬂ]ﬁ%%ﬂ%%ﬁ@ﬁ&%fﬁ
BREE -

EBHNMRIBERERAFIENEERE - FHA
WARKRINEEEFETEZNRE - BEMF
B B A A IR R %*)?&7%@@%%5%&7—{.%@%
BEH R - @ LETENER %*JZTR?&J\L%
TJ%.% SEANYNGIEOE- S T RNEEEHE

TEHE T~ ﬂfﬁig%tt26% BRI
*Eﬁﬁc%iﬁﬁLZS% RABRFHEHRB L

HEMNES Elﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁt%ﬁ??%?ﬂ
# ESERHEEWAMSESMMNNHE
YRRl KR ERE D Fﬁfgﬁl\?‘éj THRER]
[T E % AERRBARR R EHER
MBER - PREFHKEREEESHN A B
RIE - BRARBEDS - LR FRIIGEEE

EE(FE)EZRARAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PG B A

saw a promising market in banquet years ago, and actively expanded
into the market, with the flagship banquet venue in Shenzhen being
a prime example. The business had maintained stable growth since
its launch in 2014. Following the shift of consumption pattern in
recent years, mini banquets, including birthday parties and graduation
parties, are creating additional room for development. The Group
is keen on developing the business through cooperation with event
planning companies and its own active promotions in different
regions.

In addition to its relentless effort on business expansion, the Group
also attaches great importance to refined management, continuous
efficiency boost, enhancement of product safety standard and
effective cost control, which are the cornerstones of sustainable and
healthy corporate development. During the year, the Group assessed
the operation condition of each outlet and closed those with sub-par
performance to boost overall efficiency.

Food ingredients are the most significant cost component for the
Group. The central procurement strategy remains a centrepiece to
cost control since its introduction a few years ago. The procurement
team closely monitors the price and supply of food ingredients and
continuously strives to negotiate a price freeze for a limited period
with suppliers with long-lasting relationship to offset the risk of price
fluctuation. Moreover, bulk procurement offers us better access to
seasonal ingredients so that we can launch promotions at a more
favourable price when opportunity arises. The Group has also
introduced the concept of regional subordinate central kitchen, which
is responsible for providing regional outlets with fast-selling dim sum,
semi-finished products with complicated process and seasoning
sauces. Such measure aims to boost dish delivery efficiency, relieve
the pressure of outlet’s kitchen and streamline staffing in the long run.
Furthermore, the rollout of value added tax reforms in Mainland China
in May 2016 was also beneficial to the Group. Due to the above
events, overall gross profit margin increased from 60.0% as at 31
December 2015 to 62.9% as at 31 December 2016, with growth in
overall efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Chinese Restaurant Business

The Group is delighted to report that its Chinese restaurant
business in all regions has recorded growth with a general boost
in both consumption per capita and customer flow, resulting in
an overall average same store revenue growth of 9%. Turnover
growth recorded in all regions was attributable to a wide range of
promotions and business expansion strategies, including employee
incentive scheme to encourage restaurants to achieve sales target,
continuous marketing of membership card, proactive promotion and
development of mini banquets. On the other hand, by strengthening
the cooperation with e-commerce platforms, the Group noticed the
rapid growth in online takeaway business, and gradually increased
online delivery sales in each region from end of 2015 to 2016,
resulting in a significant and continuous growth of sales.

While Northern China region saw a significant growth with adjusted
marketing strategy, streamlined cost control and internal efficiency
enhancement in earlier years. Considering the unique spending
pattern in the northern region, “Tang Palace” emphasized on lunch
and banquet promotion, while “Tang Cuisine” pinpointed the per
customer spending by adjusting product mix. A new restaurant that
opened in 2015 started to contribute to the region, resulting the
revenue of Northern China region amounted to RMB293.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase of
approximately 22% over the corresponding period last year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, turnover in Eastern China
region recorded RMB543.3 million, mainly because the branch
restaurants opened in 2015 started to generate profit during the
year. Moreover, through management of key operational data, we
increased the occupancy rate for vip rooms and formulated effective
sales strategies resulting a remarkable increase of consumption per
capita. The Group also strengthened the cooperation with online
take-away operators in Eastern China region in the second half
of 2016 by expanding from one partner company to many other
platforms like “Meituan.com” (EE4SME), “Waimai.baidu.com” (&
FEANE), “Ele.me” (B T J&) progressively with enhanced advertising
placements. Excluding the closure of one outlet in February 2016 due
to expiry of tenancy during the year, the overall turnover recorded a
growth of nearly 17%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PR e B A

Despite the transfer of two outlets to a third party in Hong Kong and
Macau during the year, turnover of outlets in Southern China region
maintained a steady growth. Adjustments in the sale of set meals
and product portfolios drove up consumption per capita in the entire
region. The Group carried out renovation and brand upgrading as
well as readjustments in menu mix for one restaurant in Shenzhen
by phases during the year and recorded a nearly 30% growth in
the fourth quarter as compared to the same period last year after it
reopened at the end of September.

Chengdu, in Western China region, was a new region the Group first
tapped into in October 2015. With the efforts of the Group for more
than one year, the Group has successfully established its profile
through close cooperation with local media by marketing promotion
to broaden customer base, and secured a steady growth in turnover
during the year.

Casual Dining Business
Self-developed Brand

“Social Place” has been in operation for less than three years since its
establishment and has established a good reputation in Hong Kong
and China. As a popular restaurant, its revenue continued to increase.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has a total of 5
restaurants in Hong Kong, Shenzhen and Chengdu, one was opened
in 2015 in Chengdu, and two of which were new restaurants opened
in Shenzhen in 2016. They are widely accepted by local customers.
The first outlet in Hong Kong has been in operation for more than
two years with a satisfactory result revenue increased by over 20%
in 2016 compared to last year. The Group considered that the brand
was mature in Hong Kong, and took the opportunity to open another
outlet in Hong Kong in December 2016. Innovative special products
were introduced to create another popular trend, boosting the
customer turnover.

More than a year since its debut in Shanghai, Canton Tea Room
maintains stable customer flow and the Group intends to set up more
branches in 2017 to fuffill its enormous development potential.

Utilising its market acumen and management strengths, the Group
develops a diversified brand portfolio. The success of casual dining
proves the business captures the consumption pattern of younger
generations and it fills the Group with optimism and confidence.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Joint Venture Brand

Immediately after additional equity investment in 2015, the Group’s
Malaysian partner of “PappaRich” brand started to play an integral
role in the business operation management in Mainland China and the
assessment of the brand’s current market position and the operating
condition of each outlet with new development plans laid out. In
2016, one outlet with sub-par performance was closed and three
outlets in Shanghai have already been renovated so as to adhere to
the latest original Malaysian style and the menu has been updated.
Meanwhile, the success of expanding its presence to Taiwan was
followed by one new restaurant opened in Hong Kong and Shenzhen,
respectively during the year. As of 31 December 2016, there are
in total seven “PappaRich” restaurants in China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan.

Franchised Brand

Considering the current and future development strategy of casual
dining business, a long-term assessment and multiple evaluation of
Pepper Lunch’s operation in various regions, the Group is of the view
that it is more appropriate to close down outlets with disappointing
operation performance in Shanghai and returning the region’s
franchise right to its owner, together with outlets with good operation
conditions. In addition, certain outlets with sub-par performance were
closed after an assessment of operation conditions in the Beijing
region so as to concentrate management resources on outlets with
good operation, thereby boosting efficiency and increasing profit
margin.

Strategic Cooperation and Investment

During the year, the Group has become more active in arrangement
for the development of cooperation with external parties. On 18
May 2016, the Group invested in C.Y. Food Trading (HK) Company
Limited (“C.Y.”), a quality food-related company, to work closer
with upstream suppliers so as to control and enhance the sourcing
network, an aspect of utmost importance to the Group. The Group
expects the extensive sourcing network and well-established food
processing system of this company will (i) provide the Group with a
reliable source of high-quality, stable and traceable food ingredient
supply; and (i) strengthen the Group’s control on the costs of food
procurement. The holding company of C.Y., Goal Forward Holdings
Limited (“GF Holdings”), was also listed on the GEM Board of the
stock exchange (Stock Code: 8240) on 13 October 2016, and a fair
value change of RMB12.3 million was recognised during the year. As
of 31 December 2016, the Group held 11.25% equity of GF Holdings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B i e o e

Meanwhile, as at 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Dragon King Holdings Limited (g & %A
Ry F]) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “DK Group”), and entered
into a supplemental agreement to the sale and purchase agreement
and a subscription agreement on 26 September 2016, the Group has
transferred to DK Group two Chinese restaurants located in Hong
Kong and Macau together with a cash consideration of HK$7 million,
to procure 22% equity of the DK Group. The Group believes that the
disposal mentioned above and the strategic cooperation with the DK
Group will enable both parties to strive their comparative advantages,
and it will be beneficial to the Group’s development.

The aggregate amount of above two investments as at 31 December
2016 is RMB42,326,000 which is classified as available-for-sale
investments and represented 5.5% of the Group’s total assets for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Amongst which the investment
in GF Holdings was stated at fair value of RMB23,846,000 based
on active market information, the remaining balance represents the
unlisted equity investment in DK Group stated at cost less impairment
as fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Board considers these
two new investments during the year are beneficial to the Group and
will keep assessing their performance regularly.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2016, the Group was operating 49 restaurants
and 7 other restaurants under joint venture. The table below illustrates
the number of restaurants by major brands, together with the average
spending per customer and percentage of revenue to the Group:

H—HE RZFE-—ARFRNA=TH SHAE
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NEFREE RE22%MAE - SEMEE - Litt
REHREESEENRIEAIEREE T HIEE
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1A% A N RM42, 326,000 © 18 AR E SR
& HEZE2016F12A31B I FEAERLE
EM55% - HFREIERANERMISZ ARE
BEAARK23,846,0007T * Hep AE2E£EHIE
ETRAKRE - REEBREEIEKAFEM
BEEBEYE  AAAABETEISME -
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BH  WETHTEERE -

St 75 1o R

RZFB-—RET-A=1t—H AEELZE49
RERE  AUAETARLETRERE - TRIIR
TEMENERME  BRRTAHEERIE
AEBEWZADL

Tang’s Cuisine EEE% 4 6
Tang Palace* == 25 26
Social Place BE/IE 5 2
Canton TeaRoom  EE 42 1 1
Pepper Lunch HRREE 13 20

b including Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant, Tang Palace, Excellent

Tang Palace and Tang Palace Restaurant
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283.1 294.8 11.7% 12.7%
153.4 138.6 75.4% 76.1%
113.7 161.2 5.5% 2.2%
86.0 79.8 1.8% 0.9%
48.0 45.4 5.1% 7.5%

* BREEEENY  EE BUEEREER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As mentioned above, the Group’s overall revenue for the year
increased by 14.7% to RMB1,248 million and the overall gross profit
margin has increased by 2.9%. With our persistence in carrying
on various measures to manage cost through the volatile market
in the past few years, operating expenses remained controllable
as compared with the prior year, whereas percentage of revenue
on staff costs was 27.0% (2015: 27.8%), depreciation of items of
property, plant and equipment was 4.4% (2015: 5.3%), rental and
related expenses is 9.0% (2015: 10.8%), and other expenses was
7.4% (2015: 7.0%). Effective tax rate reached 29.6% (2015: 24.8%)
because tax credit has not been provided for certain business with
losses recognised during the year. Despite of this, as driven by the
strong uptrend of our business as well as favorable result of our effort
in management cost, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year increased by 107.8% from RMB48.6 million to
RMB101.0 million.

Cash flow

Cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB102.5 million from
RMB297.9 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB400.4 million as
at 31 December 2016.

Net cash of RMB195.1 million was generated from operating activities
during the year. Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
RMB20.2 million during the year, of which RMB41.3 million was
related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment and was
partially offset by RMB25.0 million withdrawal of a pledged time
deposit. Net cash used in financing activities amounted to RMB71.6
million for the year, of which RMB27.0 million was related to
repayment of bank loan and RMB45.0 million was related to dividend
payment.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s funding and treasury activities were managed and
controlled by the senior management. The Group maintained cash
and cash equivalents and time deposit, in aggregate, of RMB472.5
million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB402.8
million). As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total assets, net
current assets and net assets were RMB773.5 million (31 December
2015: RMB699.4 million), RMB262.9 million (31 December 2015:
RMB202.9 million) and RMB479.3 million (31 December 2015:
RMB421.7 million), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PR e B A

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB41.0 million (31 December 2015: RMB65.3 million). The gearing
ratio (calculated as bank borrowings divided by total equity) was 8.6%
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 15.5%).

As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.9 (31 December 2015: 1.7).

The directors are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient working
capital for the Group’s operations and expansion in the near future.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were conducted
mainly in the PRC with revenues and expenses denominated
mainly in RMB. The Group’s cash and bank deposits were mainly
denominated in RMB, with some denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.
Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong Dollars
against RMB as the functional currency may have a financial impact
to the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the directors considered the Group’s
foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

In reviewing the year of 2016, we noted the overall revenue growth of
the Group were attributable to a number of factors including: newly
opened restaurants showing progressive improvement in operation
efficiency, various promotional campaigns and business development
strategies such as staff incentive programme, sales and top up value
of membership cards, the mini banquet promotion initiative, more
extensive collaboration with e-commerce platforms etc.; coupled with
our tireless effort in enhancing cost effectiveness and the benefit from
the PRC’s value added tax reform. All of these factors contributed to
the satisfactory improvement in our overall gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Having embarked on a series of internal governance rationalization
and enhancement in the past few years, the Group consider 2017 is
an opportune time to step up development for the various restaurant
brands run by the Group. Plans have already been laid out for the
openings of new restaurants in various regions under the self-owned
brands of “Tang Palace”, “Social Place” and “Canton Tea Room” in
the current year. Our franchised brand “Pepper Lunch” has already
opened 2 new restaurants in January and February 2017, while our
joint venture brand “PappaRich” also added new stores in Hong Kong
and Taiwan respectively in January 2017.

It is crucial for the Group to provide training for the middle and senior
management staff and the management team of its restaurants in
2017 so as to keep them abreast its rapid expansion of its overall
operation. Apart from enhancing the Group’s internal and regular
trainings, the Group will arrange for exchanges with players from the
industry and external learning to its agenda this year. The Group’s
culture is its foundation and a distinguish culture serves as the core
value of the Group’s sustainable development. Looking ahead in
2017, the Group will continue its efforts in promoting the learning of
traditional Chinese culture on a full scale, with a view to improving
employees’ psychological strength. So they may fully dedicated to
their lives, their work and their services with an optimistic, positive and
progressive attitude. As a result, the Group may improve the service
quality of its employee, satisfactory level of its customers and affinity
of its brands effectively.

In 2017, the Group will endeavor to promote its e-commerce
business, provide a wider variety of online products, including quality
imported foods, special ingredients and fresh vegetables and fruits.
It will also cooperate with different quality food enterprises, and
customize as well as develop various high-quality products to satisfy
different customers’ demands.

The year of 2017 will mark the 25th anniversary of the Group which
will also embark on various promotional activities that provide special
offers for customers. For customers from different regions, the Group,
has formulated various different discount scheme throughout the
year, which will be implemented monthly as appropriate thereafter.
This serves as a means to express our gratitude to customers for their
attention and support, it also opens up an opportunity to maintain a
close relationship with our customers, and helps them develop their
consumption habits, thereby increasing Tang Palace’s exposure to
the public and its influence.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PR e B A

Ever since the Group’s business commenced in 1992, to our
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 2011 and to the present time, the Group has always
been genuinely dedicated to our vision in catering business and
remained committed to serving our customers and focusing on
our initial business undertaking. It has never stopped from self-
reflection and self-improvement, and we have been striving to provide
whole-hearted services for our customers. While the Group take
pride in its perseverance and steadfastness and the highly visible
accomplishment over the past quarter of century, we hope and
envision to bear greater harvest and achieve greater goals together
with its shareholders and stakeholders in countless coming years.

OTHER INFORMATION
Number and Remuneration of Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had around 4,500
employees in Hong Kong, and the PRC. The Group recognises the
importance of human resources to its success, therefore qualified
and experienced personnel are recruited for expansion of new
restaurants. Remuneration is maintained at competitive levels with
discretionary bonuses payable on a merit basis, which is in line with
industrial practice. Other staff benefits provided by the Group include
mandatory provident fund, insurance schemes, share options, share
awards and performance related bonus.

Capital Commitment

The Group’s capital commitment was approximately RMB0.3 million
and RMB3.3 million as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, respectively.

Charge on Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged time deposits
of RMB43.0 million (31 December 2015: RMB68.0 million) for

banking facilities amounting to RMB41.0 million (31 December 2015:
RMB65.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Shu Ming, aged 61, is one of the founders of our Group
and joined our Group in July 1992. Mr. Yip, also the chairman of the
Group, has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
since 25 March 2011. He is responsible for our Group’s overall
corporate operations, planning and business development. Mr. Yip is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Yip has rich
experience in restaurant business. He worked as general manager at
Fortune City Restaurant, which operated in Hong Kong, from 1986 to
1995. Mr. Yip is a honorary founding president of Shenzhen Overseas
Chinese International Association. Mr. Yip is a honorary president
of The Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades
Limited. He is a part-time consultant of the China Hotel Management
Company Limited and a permanent honorary committee member
of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Yip is currently
appointed as the 14t CPPCC member of Changning District,
Shanghai. Apart from his interest in our Group, Mr. Yip is also one
of the direct or indirect owners of Meco Group and Dongguan Well
Excellent, two entities held by him for property investment and
property leasing businesses and the lessors under CCT Tenancy
Agreements as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report.

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, aged 62, is one of the founders of our Group
and has been with our Group since its establishment in July 1992.
Mr. Chan, also the vice chairman of the Group, has been appointed
as an executive director of the Company since 11 March 2010. He is
responsible for our Group’s overall corporate strategic development.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He
has rich experience in restaurant business. Prior to the establishment
of Meco Petrochemical Limited in 1992, he co-owned and operated
with others the restaurants Fortune Flower Grill and Lounge and
Fortune City Restaurant in Hong Kong between 1983 and 1996.
Apart from his interest in the Group, Mr. Chan is also one of the direct
or indirect owners of Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent,
two entities held by him for property investment and property leasing
businesses and the lessors under the CCT Tenancy Agreements as
disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. KU Hok Chiu, aged 71, is one of the founders of our Group,
and has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
since 25 March 2011. Mr. Ku joined our Group as a shareholder
Meco Petrochemical Limited since May 1996. He is responsible for
our Group’s overall corporate strategic development. Mr. Ku has rich
experience in restaurant business. Prior to joining the Group, he was
one of the indirect owners of Datong Restaurant, which operated in
China, from 1985 to 1997.

Mr. Ku is also engaged in kitchen equipment business in China
through Chiu Kwun, involving manufacture, sale, installation and
maintenance of kitchen equipment and provision of consultancy
services related to kitchen equipment and kitchen layout. Apart from
his interest in the Group, Mr. Ku is also (i) one of the shareholders of
Meco Group and Dongguan Well Excellent respectively, two entities
held by him for property investment and property leasing and the
lessors under the CCT Tenancy Agreements as disclosed under
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report; and (ii) the indirect sole owner
of Chiu Kwun, an entity held by him as the supplier and service
provider under the agreement as disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
annual report.

Ms. WENG Peihe, aged 46, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 25 March 2011 and has been the
chief executive officer of our Group since March 2000. She joined
our Group in January 1997 and worked as senior manager to general
manager from January 1997 to February 2000. Ms. Weng is primarily
responsible for overseeing our Group’s business development,
market development, human resources, administration and logistics
management. Ms. Weng has rich experience in the restaurant
industry. Prior to joining the Group, she was engaged by Dragon
Hotel, managed by New World Hotels International in 1988.

Ms. Weng was awarded Excellent Female Entrepreneur in China
Hospitality Industry by the China Hotel Association and China
Finance, Commerce, Light, Textile and Tobacco Trade Union jointly
in 2004. She was elected as one of the 2009-2010 China Hotel
Industry 100 Elites and awarded the Platinum Five-Star Medal by
the China Hotel Industry Annual Conference Organizing Committee
in March 2010. Ms. Weng was awarded as one of the Outstanding
Entrepreneur in China Brand Development for 2010 jointly by
China United Business News, Brand Magazine, China Wisdom
Engineering Association, China Academy of Management Science,
China International Brand Academy and National High Technology
Industry Brand Academy in January 2011. Ms. Weng was also
awarded as one of the Outstanding Female Entrepreneur in Shanghai
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Restaurant Industry, jointly by China Hotel Association and Shanghai
Restaurant Association in December 2011. Ms. Weng was awarded
100 Outstanding Female Entrepreneur by China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneur Association in 2012 and 2015. Ms. Weng completed
the Certificate in Chinese Restaurant Management Course at
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in 2002 and the
International Business Management CEO course at the Center for
Overseas Academic and Cultural Exchanges, Tsinghua University in
November 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, JP (Justice of the Peace), aged 62, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 25 March 2011. Mr. Kwong is qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, England, Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is a
senior partner of Messrs. Sit Fung Kwong and Shum. Mr. Kwong had
been an independent non-executive director of (i) Sparkle Roll Group
Limited (formerly known as Global Food Culture Group Limited, Jade
Dynasty Food Culture Group Limited and Jade Dynasty Group Limited
respectively) (Stock Code: 970), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from August 2002 to October 2007 and (ii)
Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 448), a company
which had been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since October 2002 until it was privatized and delisted with effect from
20 March 2012. Mr. Kwong was a former Deputy Chairman of the
Copyright Tribunal of Hong Kong and a member of the Administrative
Appeals Board and Panel of Inland Revenue Board of Review. Mr.
Kwong is the Immediate Past President of the Asian Patent Attorneys
Association, a World Intellectual Property Organization appointed
Neutral for Alternative Dispute Resolution and Uniform Domain Name
Dispute Resolution Policy Panelist, fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (London) and Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators,
a Chartered Arbitrator, Center for Effective Dispute Resolution
Accredited Mediator, and a Notary Public. He is a listed Arbitrator and
Adjudicator of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center. Mr.
Kwong is a member of the Advisory Committee on Review of Patent
System in Hong Kong and Convenor of its Working Group on Interim
Regulatory Measures of Patent Practitioners, member of Working
Group on Intellectual Property Trading and Convenor of its sub-
group on IP Arbitration and Mediation. He is also a Director of Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute (ASTRI).

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws (LLB) in November

1976 and a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) in July 1977, both
from the University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. KWONG Ping Man, aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 25
March 2011. Mr. Kwong has rich experience in accounting and
administration and is currently a director of O’Park Corporate
Services Limited. He had previously worked as accountant, company
secretary and chief financial officer at private companies. Mr. Kwong
had worked as financial controller and company secretary of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited (formerly known as Kanstar
Environmental Paper Products Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8011)
from March 2006 to July 2007 and Jimei, International Entertainment
Group Limited (formerly known as Karce International Holdings
Company Limited) (Stock Code: 1159) from June 2008 to January
2009, both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Kwong is currently appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Royal Deluxe Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 3789). He is also
an independent non-executive director of Group Sense (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 601), and Elegance Optical International
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 907).

Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive director of
Yueshou Environmental Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Rich Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 1191), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since July 2007 until he retired
from his office in December 2011. He had been an independent
non-executive director of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 509) (formerly known as Century Sunshine Ecological
Technology Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 8276)) since September
2004, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange until its listing was transferred to the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 1 August 2008. Mr. Kwong had also been
an independent non-executive director of Jiu Rong Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Mitsumaru East Kit (Holdings) Limited) (Stock
Code: 2358), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since March 2009 until he retired from his office in 2012.
Mr. Kwong had also been an independent non-executive director
of Yat Sing Holdings Ltd. (Stock code: 3708) until he retired from
his office in 2016. Mr. Kwong had also been an independent non-
executive director of China Candy Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 8182)
until he retired from his office in February 2016. He had also been an
independent non-executive director of Clear Lift Holdings Ltd. (Stock
Code: 1341) until he retired from his office in March 2017.

Mr. Kwong obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce accounting
from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in August 1996, a
Postgraduate diploma in corporate administration (part-time) from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1998 and a
master’s degree in professional accounting from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 2003. He is a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountants (now known
as CPA Australia), a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators respectively.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, aged 61, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company since 25
March 2011. Mr. Cheung has rich experience in the Chinese style
fast food restaurant industry in Hong Kong. From 2002 to 2009,
he co-owned and operated with others the Chinese-style fast
food restaurants Cousin Cousin Cafe in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr.
Cheung has licensed the trade name of aforesaid Chinese-style fast
food restaurants to other independent third parties in the PRC at no
charge. Since 2004, Mr. Cheung has been engaged in the provision
of corporate training on communication skills, interpersonal skills and
team building to corporations, including corporations in the restaurant
industry. He is also a film director, script-writer and producer.

He obtained a Diploma of Arts in Chinese Language Literature from
the Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong Baptist
University) in June 1979 and an Executive Master of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Chung Yeung, aged 39, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined our Group in
January 2012 and is responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s finance and accounting, taxation, information technology,
investor relations and listing compliance functions. He graduated from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999 with a
bachelor’s degree of business administration in accounting and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong has rich experience in finance and accounting profession.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in Ermst & Young from
June 2000 to December 2011. Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-
executive director of Goal Forward Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8240) in May 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Zhi Xiong, aged 46, is the Vice President of our Group.
He has been with our Group since May 2000. Since January 2013,
Mr. Chen has become the Vice President of our Group. He was an
editor on the China Hotel and Catering Industry Book Series Editorial
Board from May 2005, honorary consultant to the Provincial and
Hong Kong Gourmet Weekly from March 2006 and chairman of the
Expert Committee of Zhuhai Food & Beverage Association from June
2006. He was accredited as China Cooking Master by China Hotel
Association in 2003 and accredited National Judge Qualification
(Hotel) — First Class from China Hotel Association in 2004. Mr. Chen
was also awarded the group silver award in the 5th National Cooking
Skills Competition in 2003 by The Organizing Committee of the 5th
National Cooking Skills Competition, the Hong Kong, Guangdong
and Macau Top Ten Chefs 2004 — Gold Award by the Editorial Board
of the Hong Kong, Guangdong and Macau Chefs Ceremony and the
Quan Guo Shi Jia Jin Shao Jiang in the China Hotel System Service
Skill Competition by the China Hotel System Service Skill Competition
(Zhongnan District) Organizing Committee in 2005. He obtained a
certificate from the Nutritional Occupational Skills Testing Authority
of the Ministry of Labor and Social Security for passing the tests for
nutritionist and Chinese cook in December 2005 and June 2007
respectively. In 2006, he was awarded a Diploma of Membership
by Les Amis d’Escoffier Society, Inc. (now known as Les Amis
d’Escoffier Society of New York, Inc.) as Honorary Chairman. Mr.
Chen completed the ERS 5S Management Certificate Course from
the Hong Kong Environmental Resource and Safety Institute in April
2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of Company and
its shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
These can be achieved by an effective Board, segregation of duties
with clear responsibility, sound internal control, appropriate risk
assessment procedures and transparency to all the shareholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in appendix 14 (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report) to the Listing Rules throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of the task of maximizing the financial
performance of the Group and making decisions in the best interest
of the Company. The Board is responsible for formulating business
policies and strategies, monitoring the performance of the senior
management of the Company, adopting and monitoring internal
business and management control, approving and monitoring annual
budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and financial
performance, considering dividend policy, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s systems of financial control and risk management.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution
of Board policies and strategies to the executive directors and
management of the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board consists of seven members,
including four executive directors, Mr. YIP Shu Ming (Chairman),
Mr. CHAN Man Wai (Vice-Chairman), Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Ms. WENG
Peihe (Chief Executive Officer), and three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred. For the Board’s composition under major
diversified perspectives, one member is female, one of them aged
between 40 and 49, one aged between 50 and 59 and five aged 60
or above. All members are Chinese with year of services more than
five years. Biographical details of each of the directors are set out on
pages 22 to 27 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among members of the Board.
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Service contract of each of the executive directors expired on 24
March 2017 and was renewed for a specific term commencing
from 25 March 2017 and expiring on 24 March 2020, which could
be terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive directors (representing
more than one-third of the Board), one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial management.
All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed in writing
to the Company that they have met all the guidelines for assessing
their independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Letter
of appointment of each of the independent non-executive directors
expired on 24 March 2017 and was renewed for a specific term
commencing from 25 March 2017 and expiring on 24 March 2020,
which could be terminated by either party by giving not less than one
month’s written notice.

Not less than one-third of the Board are subject to retirement from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Articles of Association.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group. Independent
non-executive directors have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The Board believes
that the ratio between executive directors and independent non-
executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company and of the Group. The Board also believes that the
views and participation of the independent non-executive directors in
the Board and committee meetings provide independent judgment
on the issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders
of the Company are considered and safeguarded.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in
relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the company secretary,
who is responsible for providing directors with board papers and
related materials. The directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance

coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against directors arising out of corporate activities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held four
regular board meetings. At these regular board meetings, directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant issues and
general operations of the Group, formulated business policies and
strategies, reviewed the financial performance and approved the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the interim
results of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2016,

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
and in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and the senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

(e) toreview the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems are maintained within the
Group. It is achieved by ongoing reviews through 2 committees,
namely Audit Committee and risk management and internal control
committee (the “Risk and Control Committee”). Risk and Control
Committee comprises the chief executive officer and chief financial
officer of the Company, an external PRC legal counsel engaged by
the Company, and Mr. KWONG Ping Man (the independent non-
executive director, who possesses relevant experience to review and
assess the effectiveness and adequacy of the Company’s internal
control measures). Such reviews cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.
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The Company has also established an internal audit department
in which the internal audit manager is professionally qualified with
relevant experience to monitor and oversee daily operation of internal
control matters. The Risk and Control Committee is responsible for
i) the implementation of the remedial plans recommended by the
internal audit department and ii) ensuring the compliance with the
Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules and regulations in various
business locations. The internal audit department and Risk and
Control Committee facilitate the annual review of the risk management
and internal control systems and directly report to the Audit
Committee. Any deficiencies and risks identified during the review
process will be evaluated and addressed in the Audit Committee and
be reported to the Board if the impact is considered as significant.

Pursuant to the paragraph C.2.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the process described above and the main features of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is through
effective communications with various business units and functional
departments, so as to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Besides, the Company has according to the requirement under part
14A of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, established written
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information
and circulated to all staff and management who may due to their
roles and duties, in possession of these potential price sensitive
information.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and Risk and Control
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2016 in accordance to the requirement set out in
paragraph C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, and discussed
with the management of the Company and its external and internal
auditors. It is considered that i) no material change in the nature and
extent of significant risks was noted since last annual review, ii) no
significant control failure or weakness that may have a material impact
on the Company’s financial performance has been identified during
the year, and iii) the systems cover all material controls: including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, are effective and adequate to safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interest.
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Attendance of the individual directors at the regular board meetings
and general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
as follows:

HE_Z-—RE+_A=+—BLLFER@MNE
EHEEHEFEERMERAG ZHFEET
E U

Executive directors

HITEE

Mr. YIP Shu Ming (Chairman)
ERALE(FE)

Mr. CHAN Man Wai (Vice-chairman)

PR (B S (FIEE)

Mr. KU Hok Chiu

EE i

Ms. WENG Peihe (Chief Executive Officer)
SERL T (TTBAEZ)

Independent non-executive directors
HIHBTESE

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung
B

Mr. KWONG Ping Man
BRIR S S

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred
RERRER A

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular board meeting
is given to all directors and an agenda together with board papers
are sent to all directors no less than three days before the date of
regular board meeting. All directors are given opportunity to include
in the agenda any other matter that they would like to discuss in the
meeting. With respect to the board committee meeting, reasonable
prior notice is given to all committee members. All directors and
committee members of the board committee are urged to attend
the board meeting and board committee meeting in person. For the
directors and committee members, who are unable to attend the
meeting, participation through electronic means are arranged and
available.

Should a director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the board meeting, he will abstain from voting.
Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings dealing with such conflict of interest issues.
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The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the board meeting and board
committee meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the board meeting are followed. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each board meeting and
board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each
meeting, the draft minutes is circulated to all directors or committee
members for comment and the final and approved version of minutes
is sent to all directors or committee members for their records. Board
committees, including the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee, all follow the applicable principles,
practices and procedures used in board meetings.

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development training for the year ended 31
December 2016. Details of which are set out in below table:
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. YIP Shu Ming is the chairman of the Board and Ms. WENG
Peihe is the chief executive officer of the Company, in compliance
with the Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The divisions of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company are clearly divided
to ensure a balance of power and authority and to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. YIP Shu Ming, being the chairman, is responsible for providing
leadership to the Board and ensuring that the Board functions
effectively; that directors receive in timely manner adequate
information which is complete and reliable and that all directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The chairman
also encourages directors to participate actively in and to make a full
contribution to the Board’s affairs so that the Board acts in the best
interest of the Company.

Ms. WENG Peihe, being the chief executive officer of the Company,
is responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board and leading the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted its own code for securities transactions by
directors on terms no less exacting than the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific
enquiries to all of the directors and all of the directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING
The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling

Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking for the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 which are given a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at that date and of the Group’s results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on
the going concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company acknowledging
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

The Board adopted a set of written terms of reference of each of the
board committees of the Company which are in line with the Listing
Rules requirements. The written terms of reference of each of the
board committees of the Company are posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Company has established an Audit Committee since 25 March
2011 with written terms of reference (amended on 1 January 2016) in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee comprises three
members who are all independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
KWONG Ping Man (the Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred. The Audit Committee reports to the Board
and is delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the financial
statements. Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to perform, amongst the others, the following duties:

° making recommendation to the Board on appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of that external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o facilitating the communication between external auditors,
internal audit department and management;

° ensuring that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control and risk management systems; and

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts and half-year report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and all minutes were kept by the company
secretary. The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Company, annual results and annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015, and
the unaudited interim results and interim report of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 as well as assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems. The Audit Committee reported that there was no material
uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED 36

EREEERBEY

ARBER -T——F=A-_+HARE LT
RAIFE2NGERLBERZES  WAEEIIL
HBg#EE(ENR-_T—R"F-HA—BELHE
7)) - ERZ B ENBERERNB M RAR
A c BREE M =B IIFNTESFH
B DRIRERSCEE(EE) - BEREER
REESLLE ERZEQNAEFTTERNE
SRR EVBERRAENEE - RIE
BERE BEXZESART(HEPEEIUT
BE -

MEFRERHERME  EHEE - BRINE
TR BB 2 B /B SNEE A A £ B e
BEFRGRER - DA R BR T2 (AR A R s iz B B
BeBRAMEE

o RIBEMERIRF MERINEZHE N
M R BN R AR B Fr VAR

o EHAQRMMBERE  RAREERAL
EERERAER

o MHAKENMBELREABERLESR

o IHFINEREED NEAPIREREZM
HBE

s MWREEABBRTBEZIARHAILE
EREBRER RS K&

o ERARANMBHRE  FHRMEE IF

HIRE MBI -

REZE_Z—R"ET+_A=+—HLFERE
REEGRITT-ARERZESEE A
BLHEHARMERT - BERZEEEHALQ
ARANETBREER ARAHE-T
—hE+ A=t BLEFENFEREMF
BRARBHEZFT—RNFENA=THLRE
ANREEZTHRENPHRE - ARHE
NN R BD B N B B IR R AT BN © B
ZEEWMERAERNTHREM BRI

EREANRINFBERENRES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Attendance of individual members of the Audit Committee at
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as follows:

Mr. KWONG Ping Man (Chairman)
BRI e (F /)

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung
R

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred
SRERBESEAE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor is set out as
follows:
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Type of service: PR¥stE%E
Audit services EIZRTE 1,143 1,000
Non-audit services (Including tax advisory and ~ JEERZ RS (B IR 155550
tax compliance services) IS EHRE) 22 -
Total HEt 1,165 1,000
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SHESS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee since
25 March 2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages relating to all directors and
senior management of our Group and ensure none of the directors
determine their own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members who are all independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. KWONG Chi Keung (the Chairman), Mr.
KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held to review the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
has made recommendation to the board on the remuneration
package of senior management of the Company. No director or his
associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Attendance of individual members of the Remuneration Committee at
meeting for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as follows:
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Mr. KWONG Chi Keung (Chairman)
BB E(FE)

Mr. KWONG Ping Man

BRI S

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred
SRERRESE A

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band is set out below:

1/1

11

11

BE-T—AF+-A-T—ALFESHRE
BABZHHAERIMT :

Nil to 1,500,000 Z£%£1,500,000 2
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 22,000,000 -
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 £2,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee since 25
March 2011 with written terms of reference amended on 28 March
2012 in accordance with A.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not limited to,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies of the Board. The Nomination Committee comprises three
members who are all independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred (the Chairman), Mr. KWONG Chi Keung
and Mr. KWONG Ping Man.

In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new directors,
the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the competencies
required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The
resume or document of the nominee or candidate will be given
to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The Nomination
Committee adopted a process for selection and appointment of new
directors which provides the procedure for identification of potential
candidates, evaluation of the suitability of the candidate based on
his qualifications, skills, knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board process and such
qualities and attributes that may be required by the Board.

As the Company sees the importance of the Board’s diversity in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. The Company
adopted board diversity policy. Therefore, while the Board’s
appointment will be based on meritocracy, a range of diversity
perspectives will also be considered, including but not limited to
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity and length of service.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held by the Nomination Committee,
members of the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
composition of the Board which is determined by directors’ skills
and experience appropriate to the Company’s business and the
nomination policy of the Company.
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Attendance of individual members of the Nomination Committee at
meeting for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as follows:

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred (Chairman)
REFESAE(L/E)

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung

RER L AE

Mr. KWONG Ping Man

BRI S

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening EGM

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM of the
Company are prepared in accordance with Articles 64 of the Articles
of Association:

(1) One or more shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the directors or
the company secretary of the Company and lodged with (i) the
head office and (i) the registered office of the Company in the
Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

(8)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

(4) If the directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings other than a proposal
of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow the
procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

The following procedures for a shareholder of the Company to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company are
prepared in accordance with article 110 of the Articles of Association:

A shareholder may propose a person (“Candidate”) for election as
a director at a general meeting by lodging the following documents
within the period mentioned below at the head office and principle
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3 on 10th
Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong or the branch share registrar and
transfer office (“Hong Kong Share Registrar”) of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong:

(@  a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to propose
the Candidate for election as a Director, which must (i) state
the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules, which is available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkex.com.hk); and (i) must be signed by the
shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate, which
must () indicate his/her willingness to be elected as a Director
and consent to the publication of his/her personal information as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (i) must be
signed by the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged with
the head office or the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the Company
for a period of at least seven (7) clear days commencing no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and ending no later than seven (7) clear days before the date of such
general meeting.
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To enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on
their election at a general meeting, the Company shall publish
an announcement or issue a supplemental circular as soon as
practicable after the receipt of the Proposal Notice and the Consent
Notice. The Company shall include particulars of the Candidate in the
announcement or the supplementary circular.

The Company shall assess whether or not it is necessary to adjourn
the general meeting of the election to give shareholders at least ten (10)
business days to consider the relevant information disclosed in the
announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures have been uploaded to the Company’s
website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

To direct enquiries to the Board, the shareholders should submit his/
her enquiries in writing with his/her detailed contact information to the
company secretary at the following:

By post to the head office

Tel: (852) 2180-7055

Fax: (852) 2180-7056

Email: info@tanggong.cn
Website: http://www.tanggong.cn

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has adopted
a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to shareholders
through various channels in a timely manner. Annual and interim
reports are printed and sent to all shareholders by post as requested.
The Company has also complied with provisions of the Listing
Rules by posting announcements, notices, annual reports, interim
reports and shareholders’ circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company (http://www.tanggong.cn). Apart from
these documents, press releases and newsletters are posted on the
Company’s website to enhance its transparency. Being constantly
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains a wide range
of additional information on Company’s business activities.
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In addition to publication of information, the annual general meeting
of the Company provides a forum for communication between
shareholders and directors. The chairman of the Board in person
chairs the annual general meeting to ensure shareholders’ views
are communicated to the Board. Moreover, the briefing on the
Company’s business and the questions and answer session at the
annual general meeting allow shareholders to stay informed of the
Group’s strategies and goals.

In addition to the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the board
committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees and the external auditors of the Company, are available
to answer any queries that shareholders may have. The chairman
of the Board will propose separate resolutions for each issue to be
considered at the annual general meeting.

The annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Company follows best corporate governance
practices and shareholders’ rights are preserved. Notice of annual
general meeting is delivered to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the date of the annual general meeting, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. The procedures for demanding and conducting
a poll will be explained by the chairman of the Board at the annual
general meeting. Poll results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This report is prepared in accordance with the requirements of rule
13.91 of the Listing Rules and the reporting framework of Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the
“Guide”) to the Listing Rules. In compliance with the Guide, the
Board bears the overall responsibility for the environmental, social
and governance strategy and reporting of the Group, evaluates and
determines risks of the Group in relation to the environmental, social
and governance aspects, and ensures relevant risk management
structure and internal control system are effective and appropriate.

OUR BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the operation of Chinese restaurant
business. It was founded in the 1990’s when a restaurant named
Tang Palace Seafood Restaurant was established in Shenzhen.
It soon tapped into the food and beverage sector of Beijing and
Shanghai in several years. With an aim of business diversification, the
Group gradually entered various sectors of the food and beverage
market through the means of self-developed brands, franchise
negotiation and joint venture, as well as casual dining of different
regional cuisines. In 2008, the Group commenced the operation of a
food processing factory in Shanghai to enhance its control over the
cost and quality of food ingredients. Currently, the factory is primarily
responsible for the provision of seasonal food products and basic
sauce and food ingredient processing for the Group’s outlets.

In recent years, national policies, economy and technology have
radically influenced the food and beverage industry. Amid such
rapid changes, the Group has to respond with timely and flexible
adjustments of business strategy. For instance, the Group has been
proactively researching the application of online sales and payment
platforms to keep abreast with the latest trend, so as to generate
additional value for the stakeholders. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group operated 56 restaurants in total (including restaurants under
joint venture), involving six different major brands.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

TANG PALACE’S CONCEPT OF CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

The food and beverage sector is a people oriented industry.
Loyalty and confidence of the customers and employees are the
cornerstones to the success of the Group. The management of
the Group endeavours to implement the traditional wisdom of
Chinese culture in modern management. Internally, it emphasises
communication and interaction with employees to develop a caring
culture. Externally, it focuses on gaining confidence from customers,
suppliers and regulatory departments. Food and beverage sector
is also an industry that relies on natural resources, it is crucial for
its business environment to maintain a harmonious and balanced
relationship with the nature. In 2003, the Group introduced 5S
management (“5S”, includes sort, systemize, shine, standardise and
self-discipline). After several years of implementation and learning,
the Group further introduced environment resources and safety
management mechanism (the “ERS Mechanism”) through ERS
Institute in 2009.

Through the integration of the caring culture and traditional Chinese
culture, and their actualization in the modern management system,
the Group wishes to achieve the vision of “Blessed Tang Palace,
Sustainable Corporation”.
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BRBL - A KRG

The Group believes that a solid environmental, social and governance
performance is essential to the sustainable development of the
Group’s business and the society. While striving for strong financial
results, the Group also attaches great importance to enhanced
environmental protection, social responsibility and effective corporate
governance. The Board is responsible for the environmental, social
and governance strategy and reporting of the Group and has
established a supervisory committee on sustainable development
(the “Sustainable Development Committee”). It allows for coordinated
guidance and resource allocation and is fully in charge of relevant
works on the Group’s environmental, social and governance report
(the “Report”).

SCOPE OF REPORT AND STAKEHOLDER
PARTICIPATION

This Report primarily covers the traditional Chinese restaurant
business of the Group in PRC and the district offices, which
contributes the largest cash flow and income to the Group. The
Sustainable Development Committee identifies material environmental,
social and governance matters through review and assessment of
internal operation, and determine the importance of such matters to
the Group’s business and the Company’s stakeholders. Based on
the assessment of the Sustainable Development Committee, this
Report sets out environmental, social and governance matters that
are considered to be material to the Group and the relevant reporting
scopes stipulated in the Guide. This Report primarily covers the
policies, measures and performance of the Group’s business for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”):

A. Environmental Aspect

As the primary production and operation presence of the Group
is located in the PRC, its business operation is mainly subject to
the environmental law of China. The management of the Group
recognises that compliance risk management and long-term
operating efficiency could be enhanced through minimising
the impact of its business operation on the environment.
Therefore, it has introduced the ERS Mechanism and sets up
a dedicated department for the follow-up and implementation.
In addition, energy saving and emission reduction are regarded
as a long-term objective of outlets and subject to regular
review. Moreover, the Group boost employees’ awareness
on environmental protection and encourages the actual
practices through training, education and communication.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience
any non-compliance incident in relation to the environmental
laws and regulations in the PRC and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”).
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A1.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Emissions

A1(i). Main category and its generation

A1()(@). Gas emissions

Gas emissions from the Group are primarily oily fumes
generated from food production and cooking process
and greenhouse gas emissions caused by energy
consumption, including restaurants, food factory, offices
and transportation vehicles. The Group has engaged an
external consultant (Carbon Care Asia Limited) to trace
our carbon footprints and collect data on the sources of
carbon emissions.

A1(i)(b). Waste generation

Restaurants and food factory of the Group generate
various kinds of harmless waste during their operation
and production processes, including food waste,
packaging materials and other unrecyclable waste. The
Group has established systematic operation procedures
in each restaurant to measure the daily volume of waste
for further analysis and review.

A1()(c). Sewage discharge

In the food production process and cleaning process of
utensils and equipment, the Group generates different
levels of sewage and waste water. The Group has started
to conduct a systematic measure on water consumption
and regularly assess the potential volume of sewage
generated.

A1(i)(d). Waste oil recycling

In strict compliance with the legal requirements in the PRC
and Hong Kong, the Group selectively appoints approved
recycler to recycle waste oil and prohibits disposal without
due care, reuse or sale to illegal recyclers.
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A1(ii). Relevant laws and regulations

Al(i). \EREZ1E R AR

For gas emissions, the Group is subject to “Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law” of the PRC.
National and regional legal requirements shall be
complied with in respect of emission standard, energy
consumption and assessment of environmental impact
of emission. In addition, the Group is subject to the “Air
Pollution Control Ordinance” in Hong Kong and should
apply to the Environmental Protection Department prior
to the installation and variation of relevant equipment as
required.

For waste generation, in accordance with the
requirements of “Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste” of the PRC, the
Group delivers waste to approved waste recycler in the
place of operation and prohibits disposal without due care
which deteriorates the surrounding environment.

For sewage discharge, the Group shall obtain relevant
discharge permit in accordance with the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law” and the “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively, prior to any waste water and sewage
discharge.

AT(ii). Policy initiatives

The Group expressly require each operation unit to
comply with the required national and regional standards
in respect of gas emissions, solid waste disposal and
sewage discharge. Moreover, the ERS Mechanism of the
Group provides a series of measures for energy saving
and emission reduction to minimise pollutant generation
at source, including:

- Implement effective ventilation system and kitchen
layout to reduce oily fumes

- Promote a food cherishing culture among
customers/employees to minimise waste at source

- Make reasonable use of food scraps to boost
utilisation rate and reduce food waste generated in
the production process
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A2. ERER

A2. Use of Resources

A2(i). Main category A2(). £ZLEF

The Group utilises various resources in the food
production and cooking process, including water,
electricity and natural gases. Transportation vehicles
under the management of the Group and business flight
for the management also lead to resource consumption.
Furthermore, food and beverage services involve various
food ingredients, including agricultural products, domestic
poultry and seafood.

A2(ii). Policy initiatives

The ERS Mechanism of the Group requires operation
unit to measure and control its energy consumption. The
Group also implements the “4R Principle”, namely reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace, and establishes a series of
energy saving measures for offices and outlets, including:

- Install efficient cooking equipment to boost energy
efficiency

- Install energy saving lighting equipment for outlets
in accordance with an efficient lighting area layout,
and switch off lighting equipment in unused area

- Adopt infrared sensor tap and adjust water output
to an appropriate volume

- Encourage reducing the use of paper and using
both sides of paper

- Adopt reusable materials for take-out packaging
and encourage reuse

The Group has a clear set of equipment standard and
according to its instructions, new stores are required to
install energy-saving and emission-reducing equipment,
and the Group’s engineering department is specifically
responsible for its management.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources A3. BERKXKARER

A3(i). Policy initiatives A3(). B IS

“The Environmental Protection Law” of the PRC states
that as a pollutant generating unit, a food and beverage
operator shall report and register in accordance with
requirements. The Group is also subject to relevant
environmental protection regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Other than the abovementioned regulations, the
Group also supports the “Cleaner Production Promotion
Law” and considers clean production, enhanced
efficiency of resource utilisation, as well as minimisation
and prevention of pollutant generation as important
operating guidelines of the Group. Some of the specific
measures are set out below:

- Adhere strictly to the guide of sewage discharge
and waste oil treatment to prevent water pollution

- Use biodegradable coconut hand wash, paper
towels and tissues to minimise environmental
impact

- Select seafood, such as lobsters, obtained from
eco-friendly fishing to minimise the impact on
marine environment and ecosystem

= When designing a package, consider the impact of
the material on human health and the environment
during its life cycle and select harmless, reusable,
degradable or recyclable solutions

The Group pays great concern to its operational impact
to the natural environment, therefore, apart from the
compliance to the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group also through arranging seminars and voluntary
work increases the staff’'s awareness in environment
protect and encourages putting into practice.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Group arranged seminars
for the management of outlets in each region. The talks
focused on the impact of greenhouse gas emission and
climate change on the nature and living environment of
mankind, with an aim of boosting employees’ awareness
of environmental protection. Four seminars were hosted
with an attendance of around 150 employees.
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B. Social Aspect

B1.

Employment

B1(). Relevant laws and regulations

The Group is subject to relevant labour regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, including the “Labour Law”,
“Employment Contract Law”, “Social Insurance Law”
and “Employment Ordinance”. Through appointment of
professional officers in human resource management
and legal advisors in both places, as well as active
communication with relevant local law enforcing
department, the Group manages to understand the
implementation requirement and obtain update of relevant
regulations, and thus minimising related non-compliance
risks.

B1(i). Policy initiatives

Human resources policies of the Group emphasises
diversity and equality. With a comprehensive recruitment,
remuneration and promotion system, the Group maintains
its competitive edge in the labour market to attract
different talents. The Group regularly reviews its labour
treatment and package, including working hour, holiday
and anti-discrimination measures, and has established a
reporting system for suspected misconduct. In addition,
the Group is committed to school-company cooperation
in the PRC so as to utilise the unique strengths of the
corporations and schools, to grasp the human resource
requirement of the corporations accurately, and to nurture
talents for the food and beverage industry intensively,
which leading to the achievement of a three-win situation
among corporations, schools and students. In 2016, the
Group cooperated with approximately 40 schools with
1,200 full-time and part-time students.
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B2. Health and Safety

B2(i). Relevant laws and regulations

B2(i).

The Group is subject to relevant labour health and safety
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the “Law
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”,
“Production Safety Law” and “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance”, etc. For the Reporting Period, there
was no material work-related casualty and work-related
injury in the PRC and Hong Kong for the Group.

Policy initiatives

As the food and beverage industry is characterised by
heavy workload, the Group is devoted to create a safe
working environment for employees and minimise the
risk of occupation hazards. Other than strict compliance
with the requirements of relevant regulations, the Group’s
ERS Mechanism also suggests a series of management
solutions to build a clean and safe workplace, including:

- Promote regular stretching exercises for
occupational health and stick relevant training
information at the announcement board of the
outlets

- Utilise automated technology to reduce certain
tasks that require repetitive work

- Establish precise operating guidelines and warnings
for dangerous equipment

- Formulate relevant guidelines in respect of
brightness, temperature, humidity and noise level at
the workplace of outlet
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Furthermore, the Group recognises the importance
of physical and mental health of employees. The
Group promotes work-life balance and supports the
development of caring culture among colleagues.
Seminars are organised from time to time to encourage
employees to respond to the problems and pressure at
work and in daily life with positive attitude.

B3. Development and Training

B3(i). Policy initiatives
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As a developing, learning and people-oriented enterprise,
the Group understands that talent development and
training is crucial to its success. Therefore, a dedicated
training department has been set up to organise internal
and external training in various forms to promote
continuous education. On top of that, the Group allocates
resource to the engagement of external advisors to offer
diversified training.

With regard to professional knowledge and skills,
apprenticeship has been implemented at outlets and
offer various rewards as incentives for veterans to mentor
new-comers and share their experience. Moreover,
conferences are regularly hosted for idea exchange
between outlets in different regions, where management
of outlets share its practical management experience, this
serves as an effective form of exchange and learning.

New Staff
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Other than the business aspect, the Group also attaches
great importance to learning at the cultural aspect. For
instance, employees at all levels are encouraged to study
“Di Zi Gui” {3578 ) and “Liao-Fan’s Four Lessons” {7
JLEAFIY so that traditional wisdom of Chinese culture is
integrated into the corporation management to enhance
the quality of employees and their morality. During
the Reporting Period, the Group organised in total 20
seminars in various regions with 2,300 participants in
total. The Group also arranges outreach activities regularly
to develop team spirit and problem solving skills of
employees outside the work environment.
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B4. Labour Standards B4. %I %R

B4(j). Relevant laws and regulations

BA4()). 1585 %12 R A4

Other than the compliance to abovementioned regulations
in relation to employment, the Group is also subject to
other related requirements in PRC on labour protection
such as the “Special Rules on the Labor Protection of
Female Employees”. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not experience any material labour dispute in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

BA4(i). Policy initiatives

The Group is committed to creating a work environment
that respects human rights and prohibits child labour and
forced labour. The Group has prepared precise employee
manual and guidelines and established an internal whistle-
blowing system to resolve labour dispute in a timely and
effective manner.

B5. Supply Chain Management

B5(i). Relevant laws and regulations

According to the “Food Safety Law” of PRC, China Food
and Drug Administration requires that all food production
operators to establish a food tracking system for safety
purpose. Similar requirements for food businesses are
also in place in the “Food Safety Ordinance” of Hong
Kong, so that the sources of food can be effectively
tracked when a food safety incident occurs.
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B5(ii). Policy initiatives

The Group strives to provide food of assured quality and
safety to our customers through systematic management
and a dedicated procurement department, and with the
careful and strict selection of food ingredients suppliers,
the quality, consistency and traceability of our sources
and supplies can be guaranteed. A set of procedures for
supplier assessment has been in place, all of our new
suppliers shall have obtained a full range of certificates
and licenses and passed a review for approval before they
could become our designated suppliers. Procurements
by our restaurants must be made with the Group’s
designated suppliers, save for some limited exceptional
cases allowed for urgent miscellaneous purchases. The
Group’s procurement department will go through the
details of any urgent miscellaneous purchases in different
regions and will swiftly follow up any abnormal conditions.

Moreover, the Group takes initiative to build effective
communication with suppliers, which may include on-
site inspection, invitation to our annual dinner as well
as awards being presented to those suppliers with
remarkable performance. The measures help forging a
strong tie of mutual trust between the Group and our
suppliers and providing a source to acquire timely market
information.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmET

B6(). Relevant laws and regulations B6(). 1565 EZE R AP
In addition to compliance of laws and regulations in the AEER TEEETHENMERLR
PRC and Hong Kong in respect of food safety, include EE’WE%Q&'%E B RMTEE)
the “Food Safety Law”, “Measures for the Hygienic (CERmAMBEES B EYR(ED
Administration of Food Addictives” and the “Food Safety ﬁ%ﬂ%{ﬁuw\ HHEEETHER
Ordinance”, the Group is also required to follow a range B ES — RRES ﬁ%%ﬂ’\] JEFR
of regulations on consumer protection during the course I ESEE)  (ERHBIEIDORE
of its sale and marketing activities, which include the mIZEAEERTE -
“Advertising Law” of the PRC, the “Trade Descriptions
Ordinance” and relevant requirements on food labelling.

B6(i). Policy initiatives B6(i). B 15 e
The Group regards food safety as the core component NEBFRZEREZEEABEEZLZR
in building consumers’ confidence. Therefore, other than R MBE—EEREEEBUBRIKE
demanding each operating unit to comply with relevant SFARRE R ESRAN - KEE R E
legal requirements, the Group has also formulated ERSEZXZMIESIHIEHSERMERE
a governing system on relevant procedures of food MAREHIE - REEETERRE B
processing in accordance with the guideline of the ERS ERTEENNRIFEHRK  11F
Mechanism, with a view to minimising the occurrence KNI ERREEBE TS
of food safety issue. For instance, kitchen is thoroughly 2 REBE - ARV E KEAN
cleaned at the end of a working day and area and utensils JERAREE R E’ = o
used to process raw and cooked food should be distinctly
labelled.
Further, the Group sets up a dedicated quality control WO REBWK I EE mEEEE
team, which is responsible for monitoring the consistency Bx - EERKMEFIEEmEER—H
of product quality of each regional outlets and addressing IEI&HﬂWIET%T?L%EI’\JFEJEﬁ o °
issues of sub-par product quality. Each outlet undergoes SEFKEHLEEIT—IKESHEL
a 5S internal audit at least annually to ensure the =R ﬁ{%*ﬁ%@%@@@]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ;
continuity of such operation practices. The Group has SEITFERERS  AEABERR
put in place a feedback mechanism for dedicated staff BREREKRBEERSKIEF -

members to handle comments or complaints in respect of
products and services.
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B7. Anti-corruption

B7(). Relevant laws and regulations

The Group strictly adheres to the laws and regulations
against corruption, including the “Criminal Law” of the
PRC and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of Hong
Kong. Our staff is completely prohibited from taking
advantage of position in committing bribery, blackmail,
fraud, extortion against or illegally accepting property
from others. We also severely combat money laundering
activities conducted through company or personal bank
account or otherwise. With determination, we expected
that the embezzlement can be ruled out from the Group.

B7(i). Policy initiatives

The Group has put in place an internal whistleblowing
mechanism that enables our employees to report any
suspected misconducts and provides adequate protection
and support to those whistle-blowers. Additionally, it is
clearly stated in all supplier contracts that no commission
rebates or kickbacks will be permitted by the Group. The
Group has always been fervently promoting the virtues in
Chinese traditional culture and shoring up the quality of
our employees. We aspire to establish a strong corporate
culture of probity and self-restraint from education aspect.
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B8. Community Investment B8. #E®RE

B8(i). Policy initiatives B8(). EEE I

The Group is dedicated to building a better society in
where our business is established and thrived. We spare
no effort in promoting the virtues of being kind and caring
to others in Chinese traditional culture. We envision
that, by first living up such values in our work place on
a day-to-day basis, we may then extend the impact
to the families of our employees, and eventually bring
transformation to the entire community. To this end, the
Group organized various activities for the proclamation
and advocating of Chinese culture. People from our
peers, employees and their families have all been invited
to participate.

We strive to turn the idea of “caring for others” into action,
thus we have formed volunteer teams in various regions
and mobilized them to take part in all sorts of community
services and activities, including visits to elderly homes
and orphanages where volunteers would give out festive
food items such as rice dumplings and mooncakes.
Disabled accesses/access-free facilities are available in
our restaurants. Our staff are encouraged to take part in
all kinds of caring actions, such as making donations into
internal charity collection boxes set up by the Group for
various charitable institutions and causes.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
G NUE R

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 21 respectively of this
annual report.

There are no important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects would be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
including business risks, operational risks and financial management
risks.

The details of financial risk management objectives and practices of
the Group is set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The management will continue to develop
efficient communication platform to enhance relationships with
individual and corporate customers, which enjoys good relationship
with suppliers and customers. During the year of 2016, there were no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers
and/or customers. The Group also recognises the importance of
human resources to its success. Details are disclosed on page
20 and the relevant sections headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
R

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures have
been adopted in the Group’s managed restaurants. Such initiatives
include recycling of used papers, energy saving measures and water
saving practices. Further details please refer to the sections headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands,
Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this report, we have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China, Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands that have a significant impact on the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 93 of
this annual report.

An interim special dividend of HK6.00 cents per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB21,371,000 in total was paid to the
shareholders of the Company during the year.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK21.00
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 8 June 2017, total amounting to
approximately RMB80,391,000.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 29 May 2017 to 2 June 2017 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of share(s) will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with Tricor Investor Services Limited, the branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2017.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the Shareholders at the AGM. For the purpose of
determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (if approved), the register of
members of the Company will be closed on 8 June 2017, during
which no transfer of share(s) will be effected. To be entitled to the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (if approved), all
transfers documents, accompanies by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited, the branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 176 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
R

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2016,
as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB48,978,000, which
included the share premium account of the Company amounting
to RMB8,393,000. Under the Companies Law (2011 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, the share premium account of the Company, is
distributable to its shareholders provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting
to RMB50,000.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Shu Ming
Mr. CHAN Man Wai
Mr. KU Hok Chiu
Ms. WENG Peihe

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWONG Chi Keung
Mr. KWONG Ping Man
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu and Mr. KWONG
Chi Keung will retire as directors by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from Mr. KWONG Chi
Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred.
As at the date of this report, the Company still considers these
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. KU Hok Chiu and
Ms. WENG Peihe, all being executive directors, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of three years
that expired on 24 March 2017 and was renewed for a specific term
commencing from 25 March 2017 and expiring on 24 March 2020,
which could be terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. KWONG Chi Keung, Mr. KWONG Ping Man and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Ting Alfred, all being independent non-executive
directors, has been appointed for a specific term of three years that
expired on 24 March 2017 and was renewed for a specific term
commencing from 25 March 2017 and expiring on 24 March 2020,
which could be terminated by either party by giving not less than
one month’s written notice. The appointments are subject to the
provisions of the Articles of Association with regard to vacation of
office of directors, removal and retirement by rotation of directors.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of our subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to
27 of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan
disclosed below, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at

31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the

directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and

unde

rlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as follows:

EERFETHRAEBRKROREBRORE
EEFHERRAR

RZZE—RNFE+ZA=+—H XRAREER
T2THRABRARRREARMEEEE(EE
Rias LB IGEIFEXVER) 2 B fn ~ 18R &
BRERET - BALER AR R BARIERE M
BFPIE352(FFE 2 Bz s kR -
SR BARET B G ANRQ B MR TR
Kogm - HBEHIMT

Ordi
th

nary shares of HK$0.1 each of
e Company

AR FGREEO BT BB

Mr. YIP Shu Ming - 98,700,000 (L) 98,700,000 (L) 23.27%
EEfS AR S A (Note 2) (ffiz2)
Mr. CHAN Man Wai 2,816,000 (L) 141,000,000 (L) 143,816,000 (L) 33.91%
PR (B4 (Note 3) (Hft3)
Mr. KU Hok Chiu - 42,340,000 (L) 42,340,000 (L) 9.98%
HERBLE (Note 4) (Ait4)
Ms. WENG Peihe 5,902,000 (L) - 5,902,000 (L) 1.39%
SR L
Notes: Bt -
(1) The letter “L” denotes the directors’ long position in the shares of the (1)  FH[L IR REERAR A A BEEEE K5
Company or the relevant associated corporation. IR o
(2)  These shares were held by Current Success Investments Limited, (2)  tEZR%P A Current Success Investments Limite
which is wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. d(REMPBPLEEL2EES)EE - RBREZBHFE
Yip is taken to be interested in the shares held by Current Success HIE &0 - B AR AR Current Success
Investments Limited. Investments Limited FT#5 78 8% 15 F ¥ A #E 2 o
(8)  These shares were held by Best Active Investments Limited, whichis  (3) Itk Z % {7 B Best Active Investments Limited( &
wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan MYEEEL2EHELS)ES - REBLALHPE
is taken to be interested in the shares held by Best Active Investments &5 - BRYc AR A Best Active Investments
Limited. Limited FT 578 #9 AR 7 HE B s
(4)  These shares were held by Bright Mind Investments Limited, which  (4)  1ttZ /%19 B Bright Mind Investments Limited( f
is wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ku is TEBEGER2EER)ES  c REZAEREE
taken to be interested in the shares held by Bright Mind Investments 16451 - Jo AE 1R AR Bright Mind Investments
Limited. Limited P55 B IR0 A ¥ 12 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than a director or chief executive of the Company) in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
R

BREXFHBEBREEWN RZZT—XR"F+A
=+—H ZEFEKAR 7I£ﬁﬁAEw%§
SERAR A REERAEREERRD - BER
MR EREER - %ﬁﬁm%M%&%fhw*
swwﬁﬂﬁ$ 56 32 PIT ) 2 500% %Z%

wmMKE %ﬂﬁﬁ ESFRIZEME AR
R ROR B ©

ERRRRIRAD RARRE R R

%

—E-RE+ZA=1+—8  REARAKN
kAR (D P IR IR R 55 M B 1R (] S5 336 fF A 1
RATHEEZERMACHRERERzARZ
BN (RRREETREIETBABRINMOT

Current Success Investments Limited (ote 2(##i22)

Ms. WONG Sau Mui tvote 2
EHEW w2

Best Active Investments Limited tote 3(4/:3)

Ms. AU Yim Bing Mete9)
& Wk £ ()

Bright Mind Investments Limited (Note 4(#7i#4)

Ms. KU Wai Man Mote 4)
HER L L i

Beneficial owner 98,700,000 23.27%
ERBEAA shares (L)

AR5 (L)
Interest of spouse 98,700,000 23.27%
A (A 2 shares (L)

& (L)
Beneficial owner 141,000,000 33.25%
ExnBA shares (L)

& (L)
Interest of spouse 143,816,000 33.91%
[T shares (L)

AR5 (L)
Beneficial owner 42,340,000 9.98%
EnHmAA shares (L)

&5 (L)
Interest of spouse 42,340,000 9.98%
Ao Bt s shares (L)

AR5 (L)
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Orchid Asia IV, L.P. wote 5)(/it5) Beneficial owner 33,082,000 7.80%
EnHEAA shares (L)
AR (L)

OAIV Holdings, L.P. (ote 8(#iizs) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.80%
corporation shares (L)
ZEGLEE R A (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Limited Mo 9(/#5)  |nterest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.80%
corporation shares (L)
RIEGLEE R AR (L)

Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited ote 5)(iz5) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.80%
corporation shares (L)
ZEFLEE R & (L)

Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited (Mote §(7iz0) Interest of a controlled 33,082,000 7.80%
corporation shares (L)
ZEGLEE R A (L)

YM Investment Limited ™ote 8)(#7:£5) Interest of a controlled 33,646,000 7.93%
corporation shares (L)
RIEGLEE R AR (L)

Ms. LAM Lai Ming (et 9 Founder of a discretionary 33,646,000 7.93%
WREBRA £ L (#its) trust shares (L)
ZRE(SFTAIA A (L)

Mr. LI Gabrigl Mete 9 Founder of a discretionary 33,646,000 7.93%
TEE S i) trust shares (L)
ZRESFTRIA AR (L)

ManageCorp Limited (Nete 8(47:25) Trustee 33,646,000 7.93%
ZEEA shares (L)
AR (L)
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Notes:

)

@

The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares of
the Company.

These shares were beneficially owned by Current Success Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. YIP Shu Ming. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Yip is taken to be interested in the shares held by Current
Success Investments Limited. Ms. WONG Sau Mui is the spouse of Mr.
Yip. Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is taken to be interested in the shares in
which Mr. Yip is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Best Active Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Man Wai. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Chan is taken to be interested in the shares held by
Best Active Investments Limited. Ms. AU Yim Bing is the spouse of Mr.
Chan. Under the SFO, Ms. Au is taken to be interested in the shares in
which Mr. Chan is interested.

These shares were beneficially owned by Bright Mind Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Ku is taken to be interested in the shares held by Bright Mind
Investments Limited. Ms. KU Wai Man is the spouse of Mr. Ku. Under
the SFO, Ms. Ku is taken to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Ku is
interested.

So far as the directors are aware of, these shares were beneficially
owned as to 33,082,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV, L.P. and as to
564,000 shares by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Orchid Asia
IV, L.P. was wholly controlled by OAIV Holdings, L.P., which was in turn
wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group Management, Limited, which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, which
was in turn wholly controlled by Orchid Asia IV Investment, Limited,
which was approximately 92.61% controlled by YM Investment Limited.
Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited was wholly controlled by YM
Investment Limited. Under the SFO, OAIV Holdings, L.P., Orchid Asia
IV Group Management, Limited, Orchid Asia IV Group, Limited, Orchid
Asia IV Investment, Limited and YM Investment Limited were taken to
be interested in the shares beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV, L.P.,
and YM Investment Limited was taken to be interested in the shares
beneficially owned by Orchid Asia IV Co-investment, Limited. Ms. LAM
Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel were also interested in YM Investment
Limited through ManageCorp Limited as Trustee and were taken to be
interested in the shares in which YM Investment Limited was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person (other
than a director or chief executive of the Company) had registered

an int

erest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE AWARD PLAN
(@) Share Option Scheme

Up to and as at 31 December 2016, no options have been
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme. Summary of some of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

()  Purposes

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company. The directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation,
will enable the Company to reward the employees,
the directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Company.

(i) Qualifying participants

The directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@@) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which any member of the Company holds an equity
interest;
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(bb) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(cc) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Company or any Invested Entity;

(dd) any customer of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity;

(ee) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Company or any Invested Entity;

(ff)  any shareholder of any member of the Company or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Company or any
Invested Entity;

(9g) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Company or any Invested Entity;

(hh) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the
Company;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
offer for the grant of option may be made to any company
wholly owned by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of participants.

(i) Maximum number of shares

(@) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time.
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(bb)

The total number of the shares which may be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue on the Listing Date, being
40,000,000 shares (“General Scheme Limit”).

Subject to (aa) above but without prejudice to (dd)
below, the Company may seek approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided that
the total number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as of the
date of approval of the limit and, for the purpose
of calculating the limit, options (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company)
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company will not be counted. The circular sent
by the Company to its shareholders shall contain,
among other information, the information required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and
the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to (aa) above and without prejudice to
(cc) above, the Company may seek separate
shareholders’ of the Company approval in general
meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the extended limit
referred to in (cc) above to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval
is sought. In such event, the Company must send
a circular to its shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified participants, the number
and terms of options to be granted, the purpose of
granting options to the specified participants with
an explanation as to how the terms of the options
serve such purpose and such other information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of
the Listing Rules.
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(v)

(v)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of such further grant must be separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
of the Company with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting. The number and terms (including
the exercise price) of options to be granted must be fixed
before the approval of the shareholders of the Company
and the date of the board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the
purpose of calculating the exercise price under note (1) to
Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Time of acceptance and exercise of options

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the directors to each
grantee, which period may commence from the date of
the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the directors and
stated in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.
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(vi)  Subscription price for the shares and consideration for
the option

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or
more board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for
the grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option within such time as
maybe specified in the offer for the grant, which shall not
be later than 21 days from the date of the offer for the
grant.

(vii)  Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 25 March 2011 and will
expire on 24 March 2021.

(viii) Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2016 and at the date of this report,
the total number of shares which may be issued pursuant
to the exercise of options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme was 40,000,000 shares,
representing about 9.43% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2016 and about 9.40%
as at the date of this report.

(b) Share Award Plan

The Board may, subject to and in accordance with the rules
of the Share Award Plan, make an award of shares to certain
classes of eligible participants as specified in the Share Award
Plan, as determined by the Board from time to time on the
basis of the Board’s opinion as to the proposed awardee’s
contribution and/or future contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. The shares and other trust fund for the
implementation of the Share Award Plan are administered by
a trustee or trustees (the “Share Award Plan Trustee”) to be
appointed by the Company.
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Under the Share Award Plan, the Board shall determine the
eligibility of the eligible participants and the number of shares to
be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the Share Award
Plan Trustee of the making of awards. The Share Award Plan
Trustee shall then set aside the appropriate number of Awarded
Shares pending the transfer and vesting to the relevant
participants out of a pool of shares which shall comprise of,
among others, shares either (1) transferred to it from any
person (other than the Group) by way of gift; (2) purchased by
the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds received by it by
way of gift or for nominal consideration; and (3) subscribed for
or purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds
allocated by the Board out of the Group’s resources, subject to
the terms and conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan.
The Share Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the
Stock Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market.
In respect of off-market transactions, purchases shall not be
made with any connected person, nor shall the purchase price
be higher than the lower of (1) the closing market price on the
date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing market
price for the five preceding trading days on which shares of
the Company were traded on the Stock Exchange. In any
given financial year of the Company, the maximum numbers of
shares to be purchased by the Share Award Plan Trustee shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company at the beginning of such financial year. The Share
Award Plan Trustee may also subscribe for new shares at par or
at such other subscription price as instructed by the Board out
of the Group’s contribution if the Board considers it appropriate
to do so. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing
Rules when granting the Awarded Shares.

The legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant Awarded
Shares shall vest in the relevant selected participant within 10
business days after the latest of (1) the date specified on the
notice of the award given by the Board to the Share Award
Plan Trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on which the
condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be attained by
such selected participant as specified in the related notice of
award have been attained and notified to the Share Award Plan
Trustee by the Board in writing.

Unless early termination by the Board, the Share Award Plan
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date. Up to and as at 31 December 2016,
7,045,000 shares had been awarded under the Share Award
Plan.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32(a) to the financial statements and in
the sections headed “Directors’ Report — Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this annual report, no director nor a connected entity
of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had conducted the following continuing
connected transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rules 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. Such transactions
were the related party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(@) CCT Tenancy Agreements

Meco Group, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, is principally engaged in property investment. It is
owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu
Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu. Dongguan Well Excellent,
a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is
principally engaged in property leasing. It is wholly owned by
HK Well Excellent, an investment holding company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU
Hok Chiu. As Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming and Mr.
KU Hok Chiu are the controlling shareholders of the Company
and executive directors, each of Meco Group and Dongguan
Well Excellent is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the CCT Tenancy Agreements entered into
between the Group as lessee and Meco Group or (as the
case may be) Dongguan Well Excellent as landlord, the Group
agreed to lease the premises set out below for a specific term
expiring on 31 December 2018. The leased premises are used
for operation of restaurant, training centre or ancillary office by
the respective Group member.
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Further details in relation to the premises leased from Meco
Group and Dongguan Well Excellent are set out below:
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Leases with Meco Group:

HXEREEE:

(1) 11 January 2016

“E-5F

-At-8

v 11 January 2016

“E-5F
-At-H

—E-REER

U

U

Units 2101, 2102, 2103, 2108,
2106, 2107 and 2108, Block H,
Expo Square, Dongcheng District,
Dongguan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC

Restaurant
HEERERE AR E
BHHE2101 - 2102 2103
2105~ 2106~ 2107 x2108%
iE

Units, 2058, 2068, 2078, 2088,
2098, 2248, 2258, 2308, 2318,
2348, 2358, 2418, 2428, 2438,
2448, 2458, and 2468, Shenzhen
Cinema, Zhonghai Commercial,
1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

Restaurant
HERY B RITE 15
BT R 2058 -
2068 * 2078 + 2083 ~ 2098 *
2248 ~ 2268 + 2308 ~ 2318
2348 ~ 2358 + 2418 ~ 2428 »
2438~ 2448 ~ 245812468 %
2B

1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018:
RMB3, 744,000
5 E-A-H
BIE-)\F
+-A=t+-A:
ARH#3,744,0007

1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018:
RMB1,631,088
—5-r5-F-B%
“ET-\F
+-A=1-A:
ARE1,631,0887C

77

Monthly rent of RMB104,000 is payable by 1 January 2016 to
the Group to Meco Group in advance 31 December 2018
each month. Such rent is inclusive —E-E-f-H

of rental tax and exclusive of water, Z2E-\E
electricity, telephone, television, heat, +-A=+-H
gas, property management, cleaning,

internet, car park and indoor facllities

maintenance fees.

AEEAGAREREERARA
AARE104, 0007 - S BER
eNETEEKE BE BHEE-

FRE RRE MAE NXER
B 2% LPE BEERER
RS -

Monthly rent of RMB45,308 is payable by
the Group to Meco Group in advance 31 December 2018
each month. Such rentis inclusive —F-F-f-H
of rental tax and exclusive of water, ZTE\F
electricity, telephone, television, heat, +-A=1+-H
gas, property management, cleaning,
internet, car park and indoor facilties
maintenance fees.

AEEAGAREREERATHN
BRARE45,308T - %
RERSHETEEKE B8
EHE EHE RAE MRE-
WEERE B8 BE-

FEERENRIEHES -

1 January 2016 to
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©) 11 January 2016
ZERE

-At-8

4 11 January 2016
E0E
-A1-A

i

Units 3018, 3078, 3088, 3098,
3108, 3118 and 3128 Level 3,
Shenzhen Cinema, Zhonghai
Commercial, 1 Xinyuan Road,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

the PRC

Training centre and ancilary office
ERIIE SRR
SR BH323018 -
3078 + 3088+ 3098 3108 *
31181:3128%
Bl O REERAE

Unit 1 on Level 6, Shenzhen
Cinema, Zhonghai Commercidl,
1 Xinyuan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

Restaurant

HE R B RIER 1R
PEENAEReE1 =
£E
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1 January 2016 to Monthly rent of RMB27,000 is payable by
31 December 2018: the Group to Meco Group in advance
RMB972,000 each month. Such rent is inclusive

B F-f-HZ of rental tax and exclusive of water,
—E-\& electricity, telephone, television, heat,
TZA=+-R: gas, property management, cleaning,
AR972,0007 internet, car park and indoor facilties

maintenance fees.
AEEARGARERRERAIRAA
BARE7,0007 - M2 RHERS
BB afEkE 8% EHE
FRE BRE MAE wEER
g 528 LRE FEERERN
RS -

1 January 2016 to Monthly rent of RMB104,000 is payable by
31 December 2018 the Group to Meco Group in advance
RMB3, 744,000 gach month. Such rent is inclusive

ZE-E-A-HE  ofrentaltaxand exclusive of water,
“E-\F electricity, telephone, television, heat,
TZA=+-R: gas, property management, cleaning,
ANEH3,744,0007 internet, car park and indoor facllities

maintenance fees.
AEEANGAREREBRAEA
ABARE1040007 - ZHEE B
Bem BTeEKE 28 B3
E 0B RRE MRE 0¥
EHE FRE LEE REEBR
ERRIELEES -
78

1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018
—5-7"5-F-H
oT-)\F
t-B=1-R

1 January 2016 to
31 December 2018
—5-~"5-F-H
EIE-\E
tZR=1-H
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Lease with Dongguan Well Excellent:

EREEZEHE
[® 11 January 2016 () Units 3106, 3107, 3108, 4106, 1 January 2016 to Monthly rent of RMB86,000 is payable by 1 January 2016 to
E0F 4107 and 4108, Block H, Expo 31 December 2018: the Group to Dongguan Well Excellent 31 December 2018
—At-H Square, Dongcheng District, RMB3,096,000 each month. Such rent is inclusive “E-E-A-H
Dongguan City, “E—F-F—HZE o rental taxand exclusive of water, Z2%5-\kF
Guangdong Province, F-)\F electricity, telephone, television, heat, +-A=1-H
the PRC +ZA=+-R: gas, property management, cleaning,
(i) Restaurant ARH3,096,00070 internet, car park and indoor faciliies
() +EERERETRAE maintenance fess.
tBREHHE3106 - 3107 * AEBERBARNRERERAZAA
3108~ 4106 » 4107 R4108% BAR®s6,0007 - ZEEBERS
i ZE B BTeREKE BB EEE-
B 528 LRE FEERERN
Note: et -
(1) The rent was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between (1) ZEEEHAFERTL2RBZESN
the parties and determined by reference to the prevailing market RTMSHSETE -

rent of the premises.
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(b)

Master service agreement for the purchase,
manufacture, installation and maintenance of
kitchen equipment

Chiu Kwun, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability in April 1990, is principally engaged in the manufacture,
sale, installation and maintenance of kitchen equipment and
provision of consultancy services related to kitchen equipment
and kitchen layout. It is indirectly wholly owned by Mr. KU Hok
Chiu. As Mr. KU Hok Chiu is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and executive director, Chiu Kwun is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

On 12 March 2014, the Group entered into a three-year-term
master service agreement with Chiu Kwun commencing from
1 January 2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016. Pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase new kitchen equipment
from and engage Chiu Kwun for the manufacture, installation
and maintenance of kitchen equipment on such terms and
conditions and at such prices to be determined from time to
time by the parties on case by case basis after arm’s length
negotiations. For each transaction under the master service
agreement, the parties shall enter into separate contract or
order, provided that the terms and conditions of each contract
or order shall be (a) on normal commercial terms; and (b) on
terms which we consider to be no less favorable to the Group
than terms offered by independent third parties suppliers to the
Group for such products or services of comparable quality. The
master service agreement could be terminated earlier by three
months’ written notice by either party.

As the design for Pepper Lunch restaurants requires the prior
approval of SFBI (Asia-Pacific) Pte. Ltd., as franchisor, the
Group has not engaged and do not intend to engage Chiu
Kwun for provision of the above goods and services in respect
of Pepper Lunch restaurants. In 2014, 2015 and 2016, the
total amount of fee paid by the Group to Chiu Kwan was
RMB1,728,000, RMB1,316,000 and RMB691,000 respectively
and were all within the annual cap of the respective years.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED 80

(b)

BE RE ZERREFERBHA
[iES

BES KR —NNAZTEN A+ B
R BREERR] - TRUERE - 5
& RERREFEREIIEHERRER
wREEMRABOERRY - xR RH
HEBELREE2ERE - ARG BB
ERARAEIBBERFATES - #URE
ETRA BERARRMBEEAL

RZZE—MFE=A+=H  AEEEBHF

RN ABR=ZF @RSz A= —
F—HA—B TR -_ZE—XRF+-A4

=t—HE®  Fit - AEERERRAF
B ERIRERIER - REBEFTHET NRE
TE BV AGRTR S G- 1 DA e (B AR [R) B BE B B 3 B
B TRBBAERE  ZEKMRER
" o ARG HER THERRXS
RIRETRTLEBANNATE R
BRIRTEMIRFIRITR() T A —REE
&k R NERAAKEHRERE LS
EmS R E L E =77 HEBREN K
Ko BRBHHEA BESR TR =EH
FHEMBATARLL

AP BRI 5 1Y R% 5T 72 #E SFBI(Asia-Pacific)
Pte. Ltd, fEBFRFFFA) BEHE « tiARE
ERELEEZREBHER I IER R
REFHREE - R_T—NHF » =%
—ARZE—RF  AEEXT FEBELN
RIE DRI A ARE1,7280007T © AR
1,316,0007T & A R #691,0007T * ¥I54E
BEFEELRZA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
undertaken by the Group were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole, as required
in Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued
their unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in (a) and (b) above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PENSION SCHEMES

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.

The Group contributed RMB26.5 million to the above mentioned
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year and
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Plan as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of each of the schemes are set out on
pages 70 to 75 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED 82

FREFRHAER

AEBEAAREFFARGIHERRAREEH
ERBEON30% © MAKE R AHEEREFARE
B ARG AR ERBAEDNI0% -

BE - - HERBEAXAQFE LHES

RAFEER - NRA)SHEATAINE QR ER
B HERBOARREZER EHES °

& BR

FrEBRECMEBRBATMNEESRERSE
ZRE - BEREERBFENELESE -EF 2
CTHFMNEESEEREARARR I EEHELE -
EAAFRE RIS EERIELR - A2
AIE RN BT 8 R AR 1D S BR8] - fEARM
EERAEREERBER - SBEFEFEHR
RARFERETORT5H »

BEBERE

ARBZ ABERARNFAS RS AL ESR
FELBER AT  AEARRRBARBRE
Fe Pl RZR A R S E R AL
RETRRER
ARABAAEEEFAERRBARRFERR
AlEFMAREREHBRR MR
RHAARERE
REARBFESHNAFERRBESHAM -

RAFHBEH  NARDHITRAEEFRD
25%HRRALEE °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best
Active Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited
and Bright Mind Investments Limited, have given an irrevocable non-
compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to which each
of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and severally undertaken,
among other matters, not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, invest in
or be engaged in any business which would or may compete with the
business of the Group. Details of the Non-compete Undertaking have
been set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The Non-compete Undertaking has become effective from the Listing
Date.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking from the Listing Date to the date of this
report.

The independent non-executive directors had reviewed the
compliance with and enforcement of the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders from the Listing Date to
the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective office, except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs

associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.
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LSS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share award plan disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies,
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements and results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITORS

Ermnst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
YIP Shu Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

L
EYzx

To the members of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tang
Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B Sr A il e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

BREETEE(A)

T8 A% R A

Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenue
mainly from its restaurant
operations in Hong Kong

and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). Revenue

is recognised when the entity
transfers significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the
food and beverage products to
the customers. Majority of the
sales of the Group were cash
sales and credit card sales.
The Group also issued prepaid
cards to customers whereby
customers would deposit
certain amounts of cash in
advance in prepaid cards which
would be utilised for future
food consumption. During the
year, revenue recorded under
prepaid cards amounted to
RMB190,150,000.

There is a risk of improper
revenue recognition which may
lead to a material misstatement
on revenue. Accordingly, we
identified this matter as a key
audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are
included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

T —RFFR

We have tested the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls
relating to revenue recognition.
We also performed audit
procedures including cut-off test
for the transactions near the

year end, test of transactions by
vouching, on a sampling basis, to
the sales summary, sales invoices
and general ledger postings. In
addition, we performed analytical
review to consider unusual trends
that could indicate material
misstatement to revenue.
Regarding the prepaid customers,
we checked to the utilisation of
card balances in sales system
and general ledger postings for
proper revenue recognition upon
the consumption of food and
beverages.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

P8 A% B o

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEIE(F)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed R ETEE ZEEEETHREM
the key audit matter i FEXS Y
Impairment of intangible assets B EEZRE

The Group has two major
intangible assets namely
trademark, licenses and
franchises of certain brands
which entitle the Group

to develop and operate
restaurants under respective
brand names and a concession
right for a tenancy agreement
buyout for opening a new
restaurant of the Group since
2012. As at 31 December
2016, these intangible assets
amounted to RMB6,504,000.
These intangible assets

have finite useful lives and

are subject to impairment
assessment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

In performing the impairment
assessment, management had
prepared cash flow projections
of the respective restaurants
and applied assumptions

in respect of market and
economic conditions.
Management’s impairment
assessment is significant to our
audit because the assessment
process is complex

and requires significant
management judgement and
imposes significant estimates
such as estimated future cash
flows, discount rates and
interest rates, etc.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3.2 and 14 to
the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included,
inter alia, evaluating the group’s
policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators
and challenging management’s

significant assumptions adopted,

in particular those relating to the
cash flow forecasts. In addition,
we performed a sensitivity

analysis and assessed the growth

and expenditure assumptions.

Furthermore, we evaluated the
adequacy of the disclosures on
the impairment assessment.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B Sr A il e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 A% BBl

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Sai Yu.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
»\/‘5 *Eﬁ]li%

Year ended 31 December 2016
S e — S = e W[ =S

2016
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Revenue W z5 5 1,248,455 1,088,147
Other income E b A 5 33,716 29,486
Cost of inventories consumed EFEFERA (463,580) (434,745)
Staff costs [=lN %N (337,491) (302,455)
Depreciation of items of property, Yz - BB REREEE
plant and equipment e (55,306) (57,200)
Utilities and consumables NHEEMEFRE KB (66,780) (62,515)
Rental and related expenses e kABERX (112,815) (117,226)
Other expenses HanfA (92,990) (75,964)
Finance costs BRE R AR 7 (978) (509)
Share of losses of joint ventures JE(RE &R REE (6,961) (2,4395)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BADER 6 145,270 64,584
Income tax expense BB 10 (42,997) (15,995)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 102,273 48,589
Attributable to: FERN
Owners of the Company RATREB A 100,992 48,589
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A 1,281 =
102,273 48,589
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AR REERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE HBEAELZ
COMPANY BRER 12
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAXRE S ARED) 23.83 11.53

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in  FREZIRE 7GR IS HRERM 11 HE -
note 11 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
i 1 22 T B i 3

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—F+-A=+—RHILFE

2016

RMB’000
ARBT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEBEF 102,273 48,589

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) He 2wz (BE)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be REZBREEFTHEEERZ

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hiphrmmiiss (EE) :

periods:
Available-for-sale investments: At HERE ¢

Changes in fair value N BENRE 12,292 -
Exchange differences on translation of MBI INETS 2 [ 5 =58

foreign operations 453 (1,225)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AEEHMEE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Wik (BR) - B 12,745 (1,225)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREAKREEE

FOR THE YEAR 115,018 47,364
Attributable to: BN

Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIE T ZE N 113,737 47,364

Non-controlling interests IEIE AR 2 1,281 =

115,018 47,364
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fo B0 S5 5IR DL 3

31 December 2016
e e S e =

2016
—E—REF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - EME& 13 129,191 159,948
Intangible assets B EE 14 6,504 13,060
Investments in joint ventures b= = /NG| 15 6,158 9,574
Available-for-sale investments EIE:: %! ’%& é 16 42,326 —
Deposits o 18 26,239 28,451
Deferred tax assets BIETRIRE E 23 5,990 8,998
Total non-current assets ERENEELTE 216,408 220,031
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 35,531 40,609
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E i fE WK
and prepayments SN 18 46,099 34,247
Due from joint ventures FEU & &N a) 21 2,914 1,703
Pledged time deposits BB TR 19 43,000 68,000
Time deposits TFEATER 19 29,122 36,954
Cash and cash equivalents He RESZE 19 400,390 297,873
Total current assets MENEERTR 557,056 479,386
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAME
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIE 20 240,551 202,157
Due to joint ventures EHG%Q 21 - 3,171
Due to related companies FEEER 21 179 1,019
Interest-bearing bank borrowings E‘lﬁ%’ﬁﬁﬁ%g 22 41,040 65,268
Tax payable FESRIIE 12,387 4,906
Total current liabilities MEN B BB 294,157 276,521
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 262,899 202,865
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERTE
LIABILITIES aE 479,307 422,896
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 23 - 1,236
Net assets BEFE 479,307 421,660
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE AELL
the Company R
Issued capital B 21T 24 35,586 35,409
Reserves = 25 442,140 386,251
477,726 421,660
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR R 2 1,581 =
Total equity B 479,307 421,660
YIP Shu Ming CHAN Man Wai
EH BRI {2
Director Director
E5F e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
i 1 HE i 52 ) e

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—F+-A=+—RHILFE

Year ended 31 December 2015 BZE-_Z—HFft+-A=1+—HLEE

A1 January 2015 R-F-1%-f-A %21 %%5 BT T4 (124 236081 403316 - 403316
Proft fr the year FmEH - - - - - 485 48580 - 4858
Other comprehensive income EREMRERE :
forthe year:
Bxchange differences on translation A EBHMEEMELH
of foreign operations EREE - - - - (1,229) - (1,229) - (1,229)
Total comprehensive income EREENGEEE
for the year - - - - (1,225) 48589 47,364 - 47,364
Issu of shares nder share RERDREEH &R
award plan i 24(e) 188 2,780 - - - - 2,968 - 2,968
Final 2014 dividend declared ER-E-MERSRE - (31.989) - - - - 31989 - (31,989
Transfer from retained profits (RERHEE - - 2105 - - @l - - -
At 81 Decernber 2015 RE-1F
T-A=t-H 35,409 6,047 26,782 74,306* (2469 282565° 421,660 - 421,660
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-ZE—XR"F+-A=1+—RHLLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROTHEARE

Available-

for-sale
Share  Statutory  investment Exchange Non-
ssued  premium  general revaluation Other fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests

it
HERE
EE Bt EiRE
ERORA  RORR -BRR  BR  RRBR  BE  RERY £ HBER 4R
ot RMBON  RMBON  RMBODO  RMBOO RMBOO  RMBOX  RMBOX  RMBOX  RMBON  RMBOW
ARRTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

(note 24) (note 25) (note 25)
Wiz Wizs) Wiz)

At 1 January 2016 RE-7"E-A-H 35,409 6,047 26,762 S TAN6 (469 262,565+ 421,660 - 421,660
Proftfor the year Eigi - - - - - - 100092 100992 1281 102,273
Other comprehensive income ERAfRTNG

forthe year:

Changes n i value o avalele-for- I ERE 2 ATERE

sale investments, net of ax yE ik - - - M - - - M - M
Bichange diferences reitedto  AEENEEMELY
foregn operatons EiEE - - - - - 453 - 453 - 453

Total comprehensie income ERrminaE

forthe year - - - 12,29 - 453 100992 13787 1,281 115018
Issue ofshares under share award plen BEREEEEARL  24() m M - - - - -2 -0
Contributions flomnon-controling. SR ER B

interests - - - - - - - - 300 300
Fina 2015 cividend declared BE_E-RERHRE - - - - - - e (B8 - (B
Mo Vibpeckdvdend  —E-AEdEEREE - - - - - - ) -
Transfer flom retained profts i - - 3,366 - - - (3,366) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"§r-R=1-A 56 833 0Me 2 TN QO MONT 4B 181 419

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * W EFERF B84 E B ERE P iR E
RMB442,140,000 (2015: RMB386,251,000) in the consolidated A R #442,140,0007T ( = FE—HF : ALK
statement of financial position. 386,251,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

22 N N ] = A
HZaleha®k
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_F- AT t=A=t+—ALEE

2016

RMB’000
AR®T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RETDRERTRE

Profit before tax T AT & A 145,270 64,584
Adjustments for: A
Finance costs EEE{D®N 7 978 509
Interest income FEWKA 5 (3,838) (2,530)
Depreciation of items of property, plant and M - HWENE
equipment HEWE 6 55,306 57,200
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 6 2,338 2,494
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BB
plant and equipment M EER 2
B8, (W) 6 1,852 (38)
Written off of intangible assets BB EMEH 6 1,043 -
Impairment of intangible assets EmRAERE 6 3,333 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary and HE—FERBAR K
a business —IRER 2 B8 6 3,368 -
Share of losses of joint ventures E(E& & A RIEIE 6,961 2,435
Equity-settled share award plan expense AR A 45 E AR (7 12 E)
TR 26 2,523 2,968
219,134 127,622
Decrease in deposits B 2,212 361
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(Em) 3,917 (4,943)
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 & E YR &
prepayments TR FRIRIE AN (14,518) (12,648)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E M
SRIEIE AN 24,275 39,019
Movements in balances with joint ventures HE BN 2 R EE) (4,382) (1,318)
Movements in balances with related companies E2RZiE A 7] 7 4562 % B) (840) (630)
Cash generated from operations KREEBMEHRSE 229,798 147,463
Interest paid B E (978) (509)
Income taxes paid B FTEHR (33,744) (16,616)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMERERE
HEE 195,076 130,338
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BEUF B 3,838 2,530
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE - BEREE
equipment 1HE (41,260) (63,950)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEL&E
plant and equipment IHE 2 TS 3kIE 2,122 4,550
Capital injection to a joint venture FEESERR] (1,882) -
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BARHEEERE 29(b) (15,844) =
Deemed disposals of subsidiaries BRIEHEMB AR 28 - (3,290)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits ERFEZORL,(38h0) 7,832 (11,411)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits B E BFER
() 25,000 (43,000)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEBFMARE
e REE (20,194) (114,571)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A BlEER

2016
RMB’000
ARMT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FTILIRITER - 42,000
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (26,964) -
Dividends paid BT E (44,967) (31,988)
Contributions from non-controlling interests FEFR AL RE 25 B A 300 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEEAE(FTA)
financing activities REMEFRE (71,631) 10,012
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH REeRBRSEEEM
EQUIVALENTS BE 103,251 25,779
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#Z IR & MIREEE 297,873 273,357
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERBE) 2T (734) (1,263)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEERREEE
AT END OF YEAR 400,390 297,873

ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASHAND B4 RESZBEZDHT
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances R RIBTTES 19 272,473 263,432
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity &= YE& R 2IEIH DR
of less than three months when acquired = A Ky R
TEBIfER 19 127,917 34,441
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REERERERTIE
the consolidated statement of cash flows MIEE MIBEHE 400,390 297,873
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
$A 255 e A it ke

31 December 2016

o W
N
)\_

T "F+-A=+—AR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is located at Unit 3, 10th Floor, Greenfield Tower, Concordia
Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in
restaurant operations and food productions.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

[EEH

FE(REDZERERAGT(TART]) BB
BRARNERHESESEMK I ERES
RAa - ERNDREBBMERZFABRA
AI([BERPT]) B o AR ARt EE
I P2 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands @ MEF Z&E R
BBNERNZEB 1R L ESMEE10E3

=
=
= °

TR AEETXRNEEREERRME
7o

K2 FRER

TEMBRARFBNT

Beijing Chaobei Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant F &B Co,, Ltd. " ERE 3,000,000 Begs

ERBLETRERARBRAF

Bejjing Chaowang Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
stz .G, Lid T RERL 300000037 mesR

tRAEEERERERAR

Beijing Haoyuan Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co,, Ltd. 7" hERS  AR%S3,0000007 meEE

ERHRE R SEHERAR

Beijing Mingzu Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
ESEL 00, i) REf  ARI5000,0007 muER

I RERESSEHERAR "

Beijing New Century Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
il Conlle. REfE  ARHB0000007 feEn

PRIt RS R ER AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e ek

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DRER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) (B AT HE R (F)

TEMBABFBAT : (F)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Beiing Well Excellent Tang Palace F & B PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Co, Ltd. " PEIRI, 3,000,007 m2ER

IREEERRRBRAT

Beijing Well Excellent Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. " REIR  AR®5,000,0007T mERE

I REEEETEEGERAR

Cheng Du Tang Palace Social Place Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Management Co,, Ltd. fERE  AKE100,0007T mERE

REEE RERERERAA

Cheng Du Well Excellent Tang Palace PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Catering Management Co., Ltd. fER  AKE100,0007 mERE

BAEEEEERERERAR"

Dongguan Expo Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. " R 3,000,000/ mERaE

Rt BT EEHERAR "

Hangzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. " REIRM  AK%3,000,0007T mERaE

MNEEEE B RHERAR "
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T 5 R B e
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2QRER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARHER(F)

TEMBRAFBNOT : ()

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

Ninja House Jiangnan Cuisine F & B (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China HK$2,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Co, Ltd. " PEIRI, 2,000,000 7T KEEE

RERIE—REROBNERAR™

Prosperous Tang F&B Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 Intangible assets holding

BERREBERAF B 100,000 REEVAE

Shanghai Changning Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co,, Ltd. " FEIR 3,000,000 mEgE

LEREEETEEHERAR "

Shanghai Hongkou Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB13,500,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. 7 mEAH AR#13,500,0007 megs

FEInEREEHERAR "

Shanghai Honggiao Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. """ PERM  AK6,000,0007T rede

HEIREEREHERAR "

Shanghai Minhang Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China USD480,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. " PE R 480,000% T Bege

LERTEEaEHERAR "

Shanghai Putuo Tang Palace F & B Co., Ltd. 7" PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100 100 Restaurant operations

FEERE=ERARAR ™ mEMt  ARHS500,0007 meEE

Shanghai Tang Palace Food Co., Ltd. ™" PRC/Mainland China USD150,000 100 100 Food production

HEEERRARAF EIRI, 150,000% 7T RmEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e ek

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. R2AEERE)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) KB A RHER ()

TEMBABFBEAT : (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

Shanghai Well Excellent Tang Palace F & B PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd. mEM  ARES3,000,0007T meEE

LERER=ERARAR ™

Shanghai Yangpu Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$12,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. 7 mERM 12,000,005 7T REZE

EaGAEEaERERAR

Shanghai Zhabei Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$1,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. 7 BB A, 1,000,000/ 7 mageE

ERlEEaEHERAR "

Shenzhen Tang Palace Social Place PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Catering Management Co., Ltd, mER  AKR¥50,0007 T

AImEE RERERBRAR"

Shenzhen Well Excellent Tang Palace F & B PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd. 7" hEIRH 3,000,000 mE2eE

AEEREZRRERAE

Suzhou Well Excellent Tang Palace Seafood PRC/Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. """ hEIRH 3,000,000/ mEgeE

FMEEEESERERAF

Tang Dian (Shanghal) Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 70 100 Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd. 7 PR AK5000,0007T mE2eE

EH(LE)ERERERAR"
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e Mt ik

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

REER(AF)
M RHER (F)

TEMBRAFBNOT : ()

Tang Palace Social Place Catering Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
EEREHARAA &% 10,000,000%7
Vital Pepper (Beijing) Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMB21,000,000

Co., Ltd. 7 E R AR#21,000,0007T

BABROLR)ERERBRAR ™
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Erst & Young global network

> These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under Mainland China law.

" The company names in English of the Company’s subsidiaries
disclosed above are for identification only.
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100 100 Restaurant operations
KeEE

100 100 Restaurant operations
KeEE

FFLAK BTN EFIT (B XAMLKE
FHERE TR R 2 m)

ZZHE 2 FIRIE T B )% 1R A A
BEIELE °
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2.1

T -ARFFR

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. Details of other subsidiaries had not been included as,
in the opinion of the directors, they did not have any material
impact on these financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except that certain
available-for-sale investment is stated at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

WA B Bk
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 MRAEBREE)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) EOEE(E)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

=
=

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
Amendments to HKAS 1, the adoption of the above new and
revised standards has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(i)  that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(v) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those items that will or
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

2.2

2.3

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement
of financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to

HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee's
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify
that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee's
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard.

NEFR 109

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 25 e B

23 CHEMEEMREMNEEMEREER

(&)

B EARAEBNZETENBRE
ZREE—ZERIT

BEGHMAER T RF/\AE&MH
HEBUBHRELERNF2RET E R
H=EHmE : AITRGTERSEENR
MXNRZFAENTE  HERFHEE
FREBR D N R 5T EEAREB RN
AR B ST T E £ R & 5 R0 AR R TR
DM ARBRAD A3 5 A
GRHMERERESENRRCEERE R
REFEENSTRE - B RER - £
EAREAEENRN IERRAERTT
RIEMOELEARRESAENRN X
i - BRI RRSIE T —HPISMAE - AR L
BT - SEEFREERENRN M
R T BRI —E B AR B R BN
BEBTEDRRARBERENBRN AR
SETETERIE o LI - BRIREE - W
RI|E EE B TR 5 BRI 5
(ERREE SARBZEENRN AR
5 AIZX5BERZAREREREER
MREXMETERE - ARERHR
—T- ) \F— A BRERMKZER] - &%IE
AR TS U ASENPEHRRELER

B2 488
=

RZZT—FNA - BEGHEAGRM
BREMBRELERBIRNFERA -
TR T AEENMARBRER —BURE
BE G ERIZE395% R BB HE 2R
FORM B ELATIRA o ZERISIAD IR
NETE - RENRE ST RIEAHTRE
AEEBEHE T N\F— A —HERHK
M B MELEREN - NEEHE LT
ERMZERZHE -

EE(hE)ERAERALT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s e Fi

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
application now.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implement issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for
most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-
use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using
the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided
in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 i P
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

3.1

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application for
other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to
consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable
profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
where exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
joint ventures.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired assets.

113

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

St 25 e B

FEEHBRBE(E)

REERTRZRE(H)

AEBRGABRRR GRS Etem s
DAFFARBEASERRIKBRESER
Hip2EUS o I EEEBAALER
Rz G AEBE  AASERGAERE
HEYRBERALER CEIGEE - AEHA
HAZRAIZRGEE 2 RERBESY
o BHSBEUAEEHSERRIZERE
BR - BRIERBRBIRETAREBEE
HIRRE - WEAERREL ZEBBERMN
ARAEENELERRIREZ —&bn ©

FETRMEECRE

& HBEMRETSR  AEARFERE
ETERERFE BEERBAEELREHME
EVETEFRENR - AeHiEENA
SR - FRIFERBEEELEZRERA
TREABBIYUNEMEENSZREEME
EZREREEERT » AJRE SRR
BEMBzReELEUETE)  SRIBE
MR ES SRR EE SRR EEEMMNE
AEEEERXAFERFEERA 28RS E
8 WREREEETE °

EEEMREERBA KRS ER  HRE
BRT TR - AHAEAEER - 'R
KB RETIARBAZ T NRFRE
MENIRE - MR RRE R TS5
EREE HEAZBEEENSERAR
BERBEREREEEE R
BIFREE &= A B B an R HIRR -

EE(hE)ERAERALT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEeMEEZREE)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period SMEBRReITEREAENRBRIAD
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised BRABEEETBEFEES R D o M
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. RZEPR - AlgEEtr Ok eFE - BRIE
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. BAUNEFEEN RS ENRELIRE
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than &) - BA|Z AR EE (BERIN RE
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the EENTERL - RO B NSRBI EA
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that AFEVEREERIBESEMETH
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount REE (B EMITE i) - BEE
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ BEEEBREEBENEBERAR -

amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which

it arises.
Related parties o))
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHERT  — A2 ANEENE
AL
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's @ ZARGZBATREZATHERSE
family and that person B mzBAL
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () eSS EEIESIAEE
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAKEEINERNTZE : %
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy AAEEIAEBEFAFZE
the Group or of a parent of the Group; EERBEKE
or 5%
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

@iy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESTBREEE)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements ~ The shorter of the period of the
respective lease or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Trademarks, franchises, licenses and concession right

Purchased trademarks, licenses and concession right are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

s e Fi

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHMWEMEE(E)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) BN RGE ()

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
operating expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 25 e B
3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESHBRBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets BEREREMEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial eMEE(K—IBemEEN—Fok—
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily IZJ;*E/\EEEFE’]**B - LNsE A )EE;z’T:ET

derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fp 7 2 P

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.1 FESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ECREEREE)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. "Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and "prolonged" against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged"
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESTBREEE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESTBREEE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED 126

FRiS®i(4&)

ELERBRABEEANBEHREER
BENHREEMEBEVHREOEREE
ZEHMA B R Z R ER -

Liﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R MR SBRSD -

s EBEREAGBNRE-BEVIIFEBA
HORZHVIRERHEREELR
EMELE > ARXSKIIFESE
FHRERBRAERERE - R

o HMERMBARINAZERRNKRESR
BAHERTERZAME - ERE8
LR B AR ES - BRFERE
BN A RAG KA g g A -

EERIBEETI AR R ERERR
AEBHIAR RAERIAB B HIBERESN
EEMEER o BETIRE E KA BRI
MEABAAI MR ERERE - RBAHEA
HEMRBARBEENEEAELES
R METBRERSD -

o HAMBEREZEAEANELEHRES
EDRAE—BUEEKREHANRZH
MR EREENBEMELS - AR
SRW T ESHFIE M ERTRFE
EE &

s HMERMBARLEZEAQRNKER
AR EREZEME @ BEHRE
BEENERZENA KRB R E
B BIA KA IERR BN B AR I E B
ERMEHHEOBERT - T THER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



T -ARFFR

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) commission income, on the completion of the transaction;
and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESTBREEE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled
transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED 128

BARRAD HER AT

ARRRABRDERE - EERTRA
KEXBGRINELERMZEERSRER
B 2 22 - AREES (BRES)RAK
BB & - e B R RS
RERTEZREB(RAEERS])

R-ZEZ-F+-RALtRABKTMEES
ZHERBEERHZRA  2EBRERL
ZBZRFERFE - SMNEEERRMAZ
RARBBITRFE - AEE—TFHEH
TR TSR MY E26

BRBEER D RAERER R SH RS 5
HEITZHE - ERED 2 HETE— 5
REBRAFAX AR - TREEER S
NERERRERE B BRRER 2 R515
32 IR HA o A S AN SR B A B 1R BR
B RE TR A 2 &xEME - HINE
BRERMRHEAZERE  BRZRAY)
KR PER 2 RET < 28 -

BEE R 2R E AR HELTEEBRE K
FEMISRIBIGRN - HEBEEMIRITZ AT BENE
ABRFE R RRFE AN EE#E TR
818 2 & EMRET 2 — B0 - MIBRBIEMT
1R H B 2 A FE - MR 2R
18130 4 A0 R Bk AR 745 22 SR 2 EL A AR (o] R
RAIERBIGM - RERIEFRB IR 2 228
RNFEEETTBERBE R, RERB GG
TYHBNE T LASZ 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 25 e B

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 31 FESHBRBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued) BEEFI(E)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

=
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—NEFER

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the subsidiaries operate outside Mainland
China are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
the subsidiaries operate outside Mainland China which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.2 EEStHE R

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no long exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. No deferred tax assets relating to
tax losses have been recognised at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB2,854,000). Further details of the Group's deferred tax are
contained in note 23 to the financial statements.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the different classes of property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis at applicable
depreciation rates over the estimated useful life. The useful
life is estimated with reference to the wear and tear history of
property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors' estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment
are impaired when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment exceeds
it recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
values less costs of disposal is based on available date from
binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of
similar assets or observable market price less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Further details are given in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s e Fi

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.2 EESHERMST(E)

ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets are impaired
whenever there are any indicators of impairment. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of intangible assets at 31 December 2016 was
RMB6,504,000 (2015: RMB13,060,000). Further details are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on geographical areas and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the Southern China region;

(i)  the Eastern China region;

(i) the Northern China region; and
(iv)  the Western China region

In the prior years, the Group had three reportable operating
segments which are restaurants operations in Southern China,
Eastern China and Northern China region. Due to the increase
in restaurant operations in the Western China region, the Group
has reassessed the operating performance which resulted in a
new operating segment, namely the Western China region.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which
is a measure of adjusted operating profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vs kR M
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. #&&5IELR(EF)
Information about major customers FEEFER
There was no revenue from customers individually contributing BEkEE —EPHIE A AREEFZU A
over 10% to the total revenue of the Group. 10%IA F
Segment information about the business is presented below: R DEERIENT

2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
ZE-NE ZE-NE “E-nNE —E-AE “E-nE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARETR AEETT AEETT AEET T
Segment revenue: ARlE:
Sales to external customers NIZFHE 352,923 310962 570,005 533545 286,795 243640 38,732 - 1,248,455 1,088,147
Inter-segment sales PEEHE - - 288 345 - - - - 488 B
352,923 310962 612,843 569,000 286,795 243640 38,732 - 1,291,203 1,123,602
Reconcilation: HE:
Elmination of inter-seqment NHEHEEHE
sales (42,838)  (35,455)
Revenue ey 1,248,455 1,088,147
Segment results Ak 60,334 23805 95035 56530 33,183 24074 6,062 - 104614 104409
Reconciiation: B
Interest income FSWA 758 482
Share of losses of joint ventures~ [E[FASARIEE (6,961) (2439
Unallocated expenses AARFER (42,163)  (37,369)
Finance costs RERA (078) (509)
Profit before tax B AR 145270 64,584
Other segment information: S AHER :
Depreciation of tems of property, 112 « BER
plant and equipment REEENE 12725 15712 25780 26267 14742 14853 2,050 - 55306 56832
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEE 291 190 512 567 - - - - 803 757
Capital expenditure* ERER 143 16,561 8732 2580 27610 21460 4,175 - 41,260 63917
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BABTIEABYE BERRENRER
equipment and intangible assets. BE o
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S 2 e Mt ik

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For management purposes, segment revenue and segment
results are the two key indicators provided to the Group's chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about the resource
allocation and to assess performance. No segment asset
and liability information is presented as, in the opinion of the
directors, such information is not a key indicator provided to the
Group's chief operating decision maker.

The Group's revenue is arising from restaurant operations and
food productions.

Geographical information

All of the Group's operations are located in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group's revenue from
external customers and all of its non-current assets are located
in the PRC, including Hong Kong and Macau.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
operation of restaurants, net of discounts and sales related
taxes during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as
follows:

4.

REDWEN(A)
REEME @ DERE RO BRERER

S BEBARE L DR BRI
ARRBMMAIIE - BERA - ARH
BEERABENLIFRHTAEEEE
BEAEE Y TR  RUREm2 W
&R -

AEBHWHTEXREEBLEENRRE
E o

HEER
NEBAARLEFUNPEARLM
B ([ ]) - NEBKEINBR U ZE
MEFAIERBEEHNNTR(BREES
TBFY) o

WS & H Al A

WHEFRAREEE CREEKRSE
(BB M ERERHE) -

A& B R AW A DT

2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
AR®F T
Revenue Uz
Gross revenue Bl s 1,272,326 1,149,148
Less: Sales related tax B SHEARRETIE (23,871) (61,001)
1,248,455 1,088,147
Other income Hablgr A
Bank interest income SRITHBULA 3,838 2,530
Commission income* RO 22,140 19,357
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - WE L&
plant and equipment 18 B Y25 _ 38
Others Hith 7,738 7,561
33,716 29,486
# Commission income represents commission received or # e AIERIHE X ERME R Wk

receivable in respect of sales of tea related products.
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S 2 e ek

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BiADGEF

AEB BN EME,(EL) TFHE

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): 17 :
2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
ARET T
Depreciation of items of property, Y - BB M&

plant and equipment B 2E 13 55,306 57,200
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E R 14 2,338 2,494
Minimum lease payments under KREHE 2 HEBEERE

operating leases 93,768 98,252
Contingent rents under operating KERE 2 AEe

leases* 5,258 2,179
Auditor's remuneration ZEREM BN & 1,143 1,000
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE « BE KRG

property, plant and equipment BB ZEE () 1,852 (38)
Written off of intangible assets WEHER B E 1,043 -
Impairment of intangible assets*** | A ERE 3,333 -
Gain on partial disposal of joint HEMEE AT Z

ventures** G - (24)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary and & —EH B AT &

a business —IBFEF 2B 27 3,368 -
Directors' remuneration ik 8 4,428 5,824
Employee benefit expense EERMNAZ(TEE

(excluding directors' and chief EERITREZHNE)

executive's remuneration) (note 8): (H13£8) -

Wages and salaries TITERHE 304,044 271,995

Equity-settled share award VARR AR 4 B % {0 228D

plan expense FTEIRX 24 2,523 2,968

Pension scheme contributions RIRET B

(defined contribution scheme)* (EREMHEFGETED 26,496 21,668
333,063 296,631
Foreign exchange differences, net ME 5, 7= R R 3,963 115

Y KEHEZARMRAAEERB XL
[ £ LA IF -

Contingent rents under operating leases are included in “Rental
and related expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

o

o MBS A SR E e A A R K
Z &R EEE I -

Gain on partial disposal of joint ventures are included in “Share of
losses of joint ventures” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

BB EREF AL e Rk BMH
X e

***  The impairment of intangible assets are included in “Other i
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions , REF—NF+ZHA=+—H  FEEZH
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in FEA] BB IR A R KR IKG )2 732

future years (2015: Nil). EDSWBEA(—F—FRF - fE) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FINANCE COSTS I

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BE R
BERADHET

2016
—E—AE
RMB’000
ARBET T
Interest on bank loans SRITERFE 978 509
8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHARBZHE
REMUNERATION

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

FR - BERTRERZMEBIE TR
8l « FHEQTEGIE383(1)(a) ~ (b)  (c) &
(MMERARIGEBEEEFEER) RHIE23E0
WEmT :

2016
RMB’000
AR® T
Fees wne 2,258 2,160
Other emoluments: Hi i -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYH S
in kind 1,735 1,868
Performance related bonuses FIREMAIEAT 389 =
Equity-settled share award plan AR 48 2 B fn
expense RENFTEIAE - 1,752
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIE IR 46 44
2,170 3,664
4,428 5,824

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

(@) BIUFHITES

P AN TR HRTEE NS
-

2016

RMB’000

AR®T T
Mr. Kwong Chi Keung -t Pt 164 144
Mr. Kwong Ping Man BB IR S A 164 144
Mr. Cheung Kin Ting, Alfred RERESLAE 164 144
492 432
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHERZM<(#E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (Continued) (@) BAFBITEE(E)
There were no other emoluments payable to the TR EEMENE I IENITES
independent non-executive directors during the year NHFEMW(—E—FRF: FT) -
(2015: Nil).
(b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) BITESERITEHAR

2016 “E-RE

Evecutive directors; H1ES:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming (*Mr. Yip") EEmrE(ERL)) 480 - m 16 - 1,225
Mr. Chan Man Wai ('Mr. Chan') BB %4 (TR 4 ) 403 - - 15 - 418
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu ('Mr. Ku') AERLE(HELE)) 403 - - - - 403
Ms. Weng Peihe ('Ms. Weng')* SRR L([Higt]) 480 389 956 15 - 1,840
1,766 389 1,735 4% - 3,936

2015 “E-1%

Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Yip Shu Ming ERmEL 480 - 846 15 - 1,341
Mr. Chan Man Wai R EEE 384 - - 14 - 398
Mr. Ku Hok Chiu L i 384 - - - - 384
Ms. Weng Peihe SEARL 480 - 1,022 15 1,752 3,069
1,728 - 1868 44 1,752 5,39

* Ms. Weng is also the chief executive of the Group. * BRTIMBAEEITEES, -
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2015: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2015: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company, are as

hERSHES

RER AER=HREEREMA(ZE
—hF:MB)EF FHFBER LA
M8 e RERMRT=R(ZT—HF :
=R)REHREECGEARTAESHITRA
HOWF 27T -

follows:

2016

—E—AE

RMB'000

ARETRT
Basic salaries and other benefits in kind HAFH & M EMEMF = 2,876 2,680
Performance related bonuses FIFAARE 2 TEAT 583 =
Equity-settled share award plan expense A4S E & 1B s 25 1,321 1,151
Pension scheme contributions RRET IR 54 50
4,834 3,881

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

BRI F N E N IFE S LI THARER
RmMEENABIT

Nil to RMB1,000,000 =Tz AR¥1,000,0007T - 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,0017TE
AR #1,500,0007T 2 =
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR#1,500,0017TE
AR #2,000,0007T - 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,0017TE
AR #2,500,0007T 1 _
3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX 10.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
is exempted from income tax. It is not subject to tax in other
jurisdictions.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. The Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%).

S 5 A B e

8%

ARBNAS B BEMAKL - LR R
MFTISTL » AR RIBABMEAM RDEER
HILIR °

HAth i 75 H) FE R B FITR B VIR AN R B L
B AER ZRITMEE - XA F)
PR B A 2 BB A B BB R 525%
(ZZ—FF : 25%) ZFT15H »

2016

—E-REF

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Current - PRC BNEA—rh
Charge for the year RNEERS 37,928 18,506
Under/(over) provision in prior years FEBETR(BE) (186) 176
Current — HK BNHR— &/ 593 128
PRC withholding tax on dividend income F B AR S A TR0 2,890 -
Deferred (note 23) BAE(H15223) 1,772 (2,815)
Total tax charge for the year A E RIS A 42,997 15,995
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FRiSBi(&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax RE BN AR A R E KD EB A [ FriE
at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and RZEEMEREMANGFGTE 2R
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense HERERERHMERGE 2 HIBER 28
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable B REARER(BIAERR)EBAFEE
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as PRAGREBRANT ¢
follows:

RMB’000
ARBT T

Profit before tax B F B A 145,270 64,584
Tax at the statutory tax rate RETER R 36,317 25.0 16,146 25.0
Lower tax rates enacted by local EHBAEERE

authority (144) (0.1) (2,689) (4.2)
Losses attributable to joint ventures & & A RIFEIGEIR 1,150 0.8 402 06
Adjustments in respect of current tax 3t 4 AT 3RS BN ERR: 18

of previous periods F{Ea% (186) (0.1) 176 0.3
Effect of withholding tax on the REEPEE AR

distributable profits of the Group's ~ BYA] 2 )E & K#9

PRC subsidiaries BEMRaTE 2,890 2.0 286 0.4
Income not subject to tax HART WA (135) (0.1) (82) -
Expenses not deductible for tax TREMB 2 FAX 834 0.6 1,427 29
Tax losses utilised from previous FRAESHEZ

periods B e (2,470) (1.7) (335) (0.9)
Tax losses not recognised REARZ BSER 2,064 1.4 2,294 3.5
Others HAh 2,677 1.8 (1,630) (2.5)
Tax charge at the Group's effective  FRIEAEEFR

rate for the year FEFE 2 HERX 42,997 29.6 15,995 24.8
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11. DIVIDENDS 11.

2016
S

RMB’000
ARBT T

REARFRIALE —

Interim special dividend — HK6.0 cents

(2015: Nil) per ordinary share TR E BA%6.0781L
(ZZ=—01F &) 21,371 =
Proposed final dividend — HK21.0 cents EEAHR S —
(2015: HK10.9 cents) per ordinary share FAEEBAR21.0781L
(ZZ—HF  10.980L) 80,391 38,823
101,762 38,823

REFZEFRAREALARRBRR
JEIERRBHERE L -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AP AEEREREEAEGLZERE

E-REFR

—=

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 423,881,295 (2015: 421,248,342) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

143

#

FBEREREN B VRBEANRE) G BRE
S ANBEANFRE N MNFRACHITE

AL INREF 19 80423,881,295/% (- T —Fh
F : 421,248,342)51E o
BHE-_T-—NEEXR_ZT-HF+=-A

=t—HIFE " $§,‘E<II,4%E§§TT/%E
BT BB o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vo 25 R B

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AARIEERESSEAELZERE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FIRER R EE R TR E T AKE
based on:

2016

RMB’000
ARBTT

Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of FAFA s HE FIREZN &
the Company, used in the basic and diluted ~ #EE & F 2 A &) @M%
earnings per share calculation EmEE ARG R 100,992 48,589

Shares &y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R 5T E FRXEZA &
in issue during the year used in the basic S AN 2 FRNE BT
and diluted earnings per share calculation TmAR hnE I 423,881,295 421,248,342
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% -  BERRE

31 December 2016 —E-AE
+=ZH=+—H
At 31 December 2015 and R-E—HEF
at 1 January 2016 +tZA=t—Hk
—T-R"F—-H—H
Cost AR 379,146 75,762 4,031 458,939
Accumulated depreciation 2FMERRE
and impairment (250,264) (45,778) (2,949) (298,991)

Net carrying amount RERE 128,882 29,984 1,082 159,948
At 1 January 2016, net of RZZ—X"F—H—-8"

accumulated depreciation Hk2:HTE KRE

and impairment 128,882 29,984 1,082 159,948
Additions NE 30,613 10,082 565 41,260
Depreciation provided during ~ SF AT E &

the year (45,025) (9,928) (353) (55,306)
Disposals HE (2,554) (1,368) (52) (3,974)
Disposal of a subsidiaryand ~ HE—FHEAA]

a business (note 27) R —TEER% (5E27) (12,442) (807) - (13,249)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% 395 117 - 512
At 31 December 2016, netof R =T—NF

accumulated depreciation +-A=+—H"

and impairment ek R E KORE 99,869 28,080 1,242 129,191
At 31 December 2016: RZT—RF

+-A=+—-H:
Cost B AR 372,211 79,059 4,329 455,599
Accumulated depreciation ZEERRE
and impairment (272,342) (50,979) (3,087) (326,408)
Net carrying amount REFE 99,869 28,080 1,242 129,191
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. V¥ - WERREE)

31 December 2015 —E-1F
+=HB=+—H
At 1 January 2015: RZE—HF—H—H:
Cost AR 348,384 74,766 3,968 427,118
Accumulated depreciation REMERRE
and impairment (217,515) (39,384) (2,309) (259,208)
Net carrying amount REE 130,869 35,382 1,659 167,910
At 1 January 2015, net of R—Z—hF—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation kR 2T E RAE
and impairment 130,869 35,382 1,659 167,910
Additions NES 53,391 10,395 164 63,950
Depreciation provided during ~ E R E&EE
the year (46,228) (10,238) (734) (57,200)
Disposals HE (3,560) (945) 1) 4,512
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 28) (PizE28) (6,324) (4,719) - (11,043)
Exchange realignment fEE 5 S 734 109 = 843
At 31 December 2015, netof RZZE—HE
accumulated depreciation +-RA=+—8"
and impairment MR BT ERAE 128,882 29,984 1,082 159,948
At 31 December 2015: RZZ—A1%F
+-RA=+—-H:
Cost B AR 379,146 75,762 4,031 458,939
Accumulated depreciation ZEHERRE
and impairment (250,264) (45,778) (2,949) (298,991)
Net carrying amount REHE 128,882 29,984 1,082 159,948
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE

31 December 2016 —E-RE
+=H=+—H

Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZE—E—F—H
accumulated amortisation 2K % &5t

B 3,531 6,279 3,250 13,060
Amortisation provided during £ 8§ B
the year (597) (1,241) (500) (2,338)
Written off HsH (1,043) - - (1,043)
Impairment during the year FENRE - (3,333) - (3,333)
Exchange realignment BEE b A 51 107 - 158
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-RA=+—H 1,942 1,812 2,750 6,504
At 31 December 2016: RZZ—REF
TZA=t—-H:
Cost BXAR 4,251 4,612 5,000 13,863
Accumulated amortisation RET#E (2,309) (2,800) (2,250) (7,359)
Net carrying amount REHE 1,942 1,812 2,750 6,504
31 December 2015 —E-fE
+=ZA=+—H

Cost at 1 January 2015, netof R=—Z—HE—F—H
accumulated amortisation 2R - MBR REt

b5 4,219 2,409 3,750 10,378
Additions NE - 5,000 = 5,000
Amortisation provided during  4F 8§ B
the year (774) (1,220) (500) (2,494)
Exchange realignment B 5K AN 86 el — 176
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—HEF
+-A=+—8H 3,531 6,279 3,250 13,060
At 31 December 2015: R-_Z—HEF
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost AR 6,439 9,321 5,000 20,760
Accumulated amortisation 2T (2,908) (3,042) (1,750) (7,700)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,531 6,279 3,250 13,060
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The directors had conducted impairment testing on the Group’s
intangible assets and they considered that the carrying amounts
of the intangible assets are in excess of their recoverable
amounts as a result of the continuing operating losses of the
joint ventures. The recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a period of the remaining useful lives approved by senior
management. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections were 12.2% to 14.2%. Accordingly, a provision
for impairment of RMB3,333,000 (2015: Nil) was charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as at 31 December
2016 (note 6).

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

14. BREEHE)

ETCYASEEREEETRENR
VTREEFEEMNRAERAEAIKE S
B DAGERFNBESCEBEME -
REEABUMIKREESBEEIREHRER
HMEARE  FHESREEEMENE
ReEBE2ENHR T ERSTHENTBE
BEHMBSRBAMET - BANE S
MIBRAIM AT EE B122%E14.2% °
At AR¥3,333,0000t(—E—H4F :
BYZREBECR _Z—XF+_-A
=+ —HREREBE RN (HFE6) °

RMB’000

FEIEBEFE

Share of net assets

6,158 9,574

The Group’s balances with joint ventures are disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.
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15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. RESE LT (HE)

ZN

i

ITBREREZHBIEMT

Tang & Rich Holdings ()) US$1,000  British Virgin Islands

Limited* 1,000%€7T HEEBEZHS
BEER(ARLRE
Tang & Rich Holdings (1) US$10  British Virgin Islands
Limited* 10X RERREES
BRERINVERAR

*

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

During the year, the Group had discontinued the recognition of
its share of losses of Tang & Rich Holdings (Il) Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “T&R (ll) Group”) because the share
of losses of the T&R(ll) Group exceeded the Group’s interest
in the T&R (Il) Group and the Group had no obligation to take
up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised
share of losses of the T&R (ll) Group for the current year and
cumulatively were RMB233,000 (2015: RMB366,000) and
RMB599,000 (2015: RMB366,000), respectively.
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56 56 Restaurant
operations

BEEG

REER

60 60 Restaurant
operations

BEXB

REER

- AR B L KR KB IREEE 2 5 —
AX B RAIERZ

PR E R AR FIEERSA -

FA - AEBEDKRIEERENLSBIER
(INERAFREWB AR (FHE E&(1)5%E
B EE AREE=ER(1NVEBEERD
TEERER(NVGE 2 #E - BASEY
EBEMAAEE—PER AEBERAFE
MR AEREEEER()EBEED A
AARE233,0000(ZT—FH4F : ARKE
366,0007T) & A R#599,000(=ZF—H
F : AR¥366,0007T) °
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15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

15. RESELNT(HE)

TRIBAEBEZBTEAZ A LAT
2 RBITER

2016
—E-RE

RMB’000

Share of the joint ventures’ losses for the year FFNE(G & & A
BihEERArREMEEKa

Share of the joint ventures’ other
comprehensive income

ARBT R

AE1E (6,961) (2,439)

1,663 =

Share of the joint ventures’ total EhEERRIZHEEIBERE

comprehensive loss
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s a
investments in the joint ventures IREEERE

(5,298) (2,435)

6,158 9,574

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

16. AHHERE

2016
S

RMB’000
ARETT

Listed equity investment, at fair value

BAFEEFEN LD

RAEE 23,846 -
Unlisted equity investment, at cost R AT ERIE ETRAIRE 18,480 -
42,326 =

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB12,292,000 (2015:
Nil) for the year.

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2016, certain unlisted equity investments
with a carrying amount of RMB18,480,000 (2015: Nil) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.
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AEFAHLEERERNFZEARE
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LR E A E S E R - R E
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= 7
FHEX -
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17. INVENTORIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A B e

17. &EE

2016
S

RMB’000
ARBT T

Food and beverages, and other operating
items for restaurant operations

R S SREHA BB € 7569
Hip & =218

35,531 40,609

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

18. BEZREMEBEWRERENITE

PREPAYMENTS

2016

—EB—REF

RMB’000

ARET T
Trade receivables B S EWIR 16,069 12,667
Prepayments FEftFRIE 17,841 17,183
Deposits and other receivables e REAEKGRIA 38,428 32,848
72,338 62,698

Less: Deposits classified as B DBRIEREBEEL

non-current assets %4 (26,239) (28,451)
46,009 34,247

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 days. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

18. BEZREMBWRERBANREE)

RREAHHE B SRR RS
K2 BRI CNREE) T -

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date and net of provisions, is

as follows:

2016

RMB’000

AR®T T
Within 30 days 30HA 14,695 8,960
31 to 60 days 31E60H 402 2,398
61 to 90 days 61E90H 327 450
Over 90 days 90H A £ 645 859
16,069 12,667

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

I (B 5l sk 2R BAERE 2 B 5 UG
T2 FREDMTEAT

follows:

2016

RMB’000

ARETT
Neither past due nor impaired AwEAs R (B 14,695 8,960
1 to 30 days past due #HI1E=30H 402 2,398
31 to 60 days past due #HA31=60H 327 450
Over 60 days past due BHIB0H LA £ 645 859
16,069 12,667

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

None of the assets included in deposits and other receivables
are either past due or impaired. The financial assets included
in the prepayments, deposits and other receivables related to
receivables for which there was no history of default.
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e ek

19. REeRBEEE

2016

—E—XfF

RMB’000

AR¥T
Cash and bank balances R RIB1TES 272,473 263,432
Time deposits TE BAfF R 200,039 139,395
472,512 402,827
Less: Pledged deposits (note 22) B BEEEER (A E22) (43,000) (68,000)

Time deposits with original maturity REIBFH BB =E A/

over 3 months EHFR (29,122) (36,954)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIREEE 400,390 297,873

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group held in the Mainland China amounted
to RMB455,455,000 (2015: RMB359,135,000). The RMB
held in the Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Certain of the Group’s cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months (2015: one day and three months) depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

—E-ANEER 153

RFERR  AEERFRALFEZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fop R B
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZRHEMENRE
2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
ARETT
Trade payables B S ENFE 63,638 59,775
Other payables and accruals H A T RIB R FERT R 31,014 41,315
Dividends payable FER LS 15,227 =
Salary and welfare payables et & MAEF| 34,449 34,041
Receipts in advance SEL GO 96,223 67,026
240,551 202,157

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RERZAWE  EHEMFENRES
RZERE DT -

2016

RMB’000

AT
Within 30 days 30HA 52,218 44,459
31 to 60 days 31£260H 4,281 7,233
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,423 2,970
91 to 180 days 912180H 976 1,377
Over 180 days 180H M 4,740 3,736
63,638 59,775

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 days to 90 days.

21. DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES 21,

The amounts due from/(to) joint ventures and related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. In the
opinion of directors, the directors, shareholders and beneficial
owners of the related companies are the common directors and
major shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 22, FTEBITEE

Effective

interest
rate (%)
BRA=

Maturity RMB’000
AHE AR®TR

(%)

Current BDER
Bank loans — secured RITEZH— 1.39% - on demand 1.49% - on demand
opiigiid 1.94% BER 41,040 1.74% REK 65,268
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARET T
Analysed into: SR :
Bank loans: SRITER
On demand BB 41,040 65,268
(@ The Group’s banking facilities amounting to (@) AEBEIREITEE AREB63,000,0007T

RMB63,000,000 (2015: RMB82,320,000), of which
RMB41,040,000 (2015: RMB65,268,000) had been
utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are secured
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to RMB43,000,000 (2015: RMB68,000,000)

(note 19).

(b) Al borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

—E-RFEFER

(ZZ—HF : AR¥82,320,0007T)
B AR#41,040,000C(ZF—H
& AR%65,268,0007T ) R #H & Hf
REWEA - AAEBLEHETEH
F AR#43,000,0007t(—ZE—H

£ AR¥68,000,0007T ) VEHE IR (B
F£19) o

b)) PIEEEREITHA-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vo 25 R B
23. DEFERRED TAX 23. EERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FER - ELEHIBAEBEREENEENT

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE

At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RF—H—H 950
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or  “ERIEEFR BN Bz K% (#1:£10)
loss during the year (note 10) 286
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZE—AF+-_A=1+—HK
—ZE-RE—-H—H 1,236
Deferred tax credited to the statement of profitor & AEER BN Bz =<t A (H7210)
loss during the year (note 10) (1,236)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H -
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23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. EEBIE(H)

EEBIREE

At 1 January 2015 R—ZE—AF—HA—H 3,753 2,144 5,897
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  £F IEIERL TN B 28 5%
the statement of profit or loss A (%)
during the year (note 10) (K1a£10) (899) 4,000 3,101
At 31 December 2015 and R-E—TE
1 January 2016 +—A=+—HkK
—E—R"F—HA—H 2,854 6,144 8,998
Deferred tax charged to the FRIREFE B
statement of profit or loss Biam&k (A 10)
during the year (note 10) (2,854) (154) (3,008)
At 31 December 2016 R_ZT—RF
+=—A=+— - 5,990 5,990

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB10,509,000 (2015: RMB7,813,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against the future taxable profits of the
company in which the losses arose. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses in Hong Kong of
approximately RMB10,509,000 (2015: RMB1,996,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. During the prior
year, deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of tax losses
of approximately RMB5,817,000.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB17,172,000 (2015: RMB59,427,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses of approximately
RMB17,172,000 in Mainland China (2015: RMB51,848,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. During the
prior year, deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of the
tax losses of approximately RMB7,579,000.
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AEEBREEELEHRBEBEBARE
1050900075(_§ AF: AR
7,813,0007T) * AR BA R {EHSE AN A
Bi& 2 EARBUEN (BEALES) - AR
Fi \/ja_ig EU*X/ﬁnﬂ/m Eﬂ(jtﬂi?JLEA%i/%E’J
FRIBEBSRELH AREE10,509,0007t( = F
—RHF : ARM1,996,0007T ) FERIE LT
BHEE RE—FEERBREBEAAR
#5,817,000 L IERIEILEFI B EEE ©

AEBRFBRAMEEZER —ZERF
WE B Z BB EE ARK17,172,000 7T
(ZZFE—HF : AR¥S59,427,0007T) AJ
AREHEEZSEBR SRR ZRKE
SRR A o B R B K TROBI R 20 FIR
MW AR FRAOHIBBEEHOAR
BA17172,000c (ZE—HF + ARK
51,848,000 ) FERELEFIBEE - N E—
EFE%EQEEWAEMZWammﬁE
RIBELEFIBEEE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

23.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes when dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary difference associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries was approximately RMB337,531,000 (2015:
RMB328,881,000). No deferred tax liability has been recognised
in respect of the undistributed earnings of certain subsidiaries
of RMB337,531,000 (2015: RMB304,159,000) because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. During the
prior year, deferred tax liability was recognised in respect of
approximately RMB24,722,000 of such undistributed earnings.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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23. ESEBIE(H)

EEBIREE (&)

BIBEFBEEMSHE - PRRAMAKTLZ
INERECEMIINRTREES R ZREE
BN10% 2B - ZREEB_ZTZN
F—F—HEER IL%F_7?t¢
T A=+—HZEREEZEFN - BEHEH
Wi FINRIE & & 2 AARE R B E R R
e - BITREIR AR 2 BB R - 5t
ZlKE.ﬁlﬁm BAMEA5%510% A

s REE B P E A Z B A
%_7?ﬂ¢ A—HBiEL 2z BFIFT
k2 IR BVETEINF 4 -

RBEER - B RARARDIREFEBEZ
T E R BN AREE337,531,0007T
(ZZ=—H%F : AR¥328,881,0007T) °

AEBUVEREBE THBRRRD IR

FAR#337,531,0000(ZE—FHF : A
R ¥#304,159,00070 ) RIEERIEE & -

TR AE B M H RO ZE R ER 2
B - MR EEEREAEABRERTEEE
Fige RE—FE - XEERBBARDIK
B E AR #4722 000 7T HE 2 B 51 18
afE-

AR A AR 32 A
o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e ek

24. ISSUED CAPITAL 24, ERITRAE
2016
—B-RE
(equivalent to)
=
HK$000 RMB’000
BT T ARET T
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 (2015: 2,000,000,000%
2,000,000,000) ordinary (ZE—F1&E:
shares HK$0.10 2,000,000,0001%)
(ZZ-1fF:
0.10/87T) 2 Bk 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
424,019,000 (2015: 424,019,0008%
421,919,000) ordinary (ZZ—1%&:
shares of HK$0.10 421,919,0008%)
(2015: HK$0.10) each FREE10ET
(ZE2-1%F:
0.10/870) 2 L@k 42,402 35,586 42,192 35,409
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to KEBZRHGMBEELERRA ZEETT
the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share capital LRI E) - BT -
is as follows:

Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—F—H 419,569,000 41,957 35,221
Issue of shares under share TERREm TR
award plan (@) 2,350,000 235 188
At 31 December 2015 and RZE—RF
1 January 2016 +-A=+—-HkK
“T—x"¥—A—H 421,919,000 42,192 35,409
Issue of shares under share BB B 2
award plan BIkRH (b) 2,100,000 210 177
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-A=1+—HR 424,019,000 42,402 35,586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 i P
24. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes:

(@)

Shar:

On 23 January 2015 and 29 July 2015, 1,330,000 and 1,020,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company were issued to
certain employees pursuant to a share award plan, respectively.
The shares were deesmed to be issued at HK$1.44 and HK$1.76
each, respectively, being the market price at the date the shares
were awarded. The total deemed consideration for the issue of
shares was HK$3,710,000 (equivalent to RMB2,968,000), of
which HK$235,000 (equivalent to RMB188,000) representing
the par value of the shares of the Company, was credited
to the Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed
consideration of HK$3,475,000 (equivalent to RMB2,780,000)
before issuing expenses was credited to share premium account.

On 25 January 2016, 2,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company were issued to certain employees pursuant to
a share award plan. The shares were deemed to be issued at
HK$1.43 each, being the market price at the date the shares
were awarded. The total deemed consideration for the issue of
shares was HK$3,003,000 (equivalent to RMB2,523,000), of
which HK$210,000 (equivalent to RMB177,000) representing
the par value of the shares of the Company, was credited
to the Company’s share capital and the remaining deemed
consideration of HK$2,793,000 (equivalent to RMB2,346,000)
before issuing expenses was credited to share premium account.

e awards

Details of the Company’s share award plan are included in note

26 to

the financial statements.
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24, ERITRA(HE)

Hiat -
(@)

=B hAFE—A-fF=EEN=E—FF
+tA=-t+hB  ARQRIRERGEE T
£l & T & 8 5 Bl % 171,330,000 A% &
1,020,000k Z AR EEO. 1B T2 LB -
BRERGE AR TR 448 T % 1.7678
JUETT - BNEEEIAR S E BRIH{E - Bk,
1T 2 EIER(BAEEA3,710,000 7T (48
BN ARE2968,0007T) © & H235,000
BT (HEERARK188,000)7T) BAR
AIRMOEE B ARRARA - T
BAERB3,475,0008 T (HHERARE
2,780,0007T) CGRINBRBEITH S ) ET AN

i -

RIE—RF—A=-+HHB  XRRIEE
f& 17 £2 B 5T 8 A& T {8 8 #772,100,000
R mENB T LR - AR
DR ARG 4B TEIT - AR
& BRTE - BIRGHETZR/IER
{E 42%8 /3,003,000 T (FHER AR
2,523,0007C) * & 210,000 T (FE
RAR®177,0007T) BA QAR M@
B BfFAXRRBBRA @ R TEERE
2,793,000/ 7T (1 & M A R % 2,346,000
T0) (RIBRBITR T ) 5T AR EER ©

MRt R R

NG Sk B R S p R B
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25.

=
=

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 96 and
97 of the financial statements.

Statutory general reserve

Statutory general reserve represents the appropriation of
10% of profit after taxation determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the
Articles of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The
appropriation may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory
general reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve includes: (a) the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by Tang Palace F&B Enterprise
Limited (“Tang Palace BVI”) and the nominal value of share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired by Tang Palace BVI, (b)
the deemed contribution from a controlling shareholder of
RMB1,866,000 arising on the acquisition of remaining 10%
equity interest in Meco Petrochemical Limited from Mr. Hui Yui
Chuen (“Mr. Hui”), a non-controlling shareholder, by Mr. Chan,
a founder shareholder of the Company, on 23 December 2009
and representing the unaudited combined net assets value of
Meco Petrochemical Limited attributable to Mr. Hui as at 30
November 2009 reclassified from non-controlling interests as
deemed contribution by Mr. Chan, (c) the difference between
the subscription price and the nominal value of the shares
allotted and issued by Tang Place BVI of RMB35,014,000
and the deemed contribution from controlling shareholders of
RMB107,215,000 and (d) the difference between the nominal
value of 1,999,999 shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company’s
issued share capital and the entire issued share capital of Tang
Palace BVI of US$50,000 eliminated as a result of the Group
Reorganisation.
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T ARBHEBRTEEF R LEREE

Hvﬁﬁﬁémﬂho%%)\im AR o fin
EE R IFEBBRRET BB AREME
ANEI50% - RIIRJA& L1 o

Hitb ek

HFEE@QEERREEXERAA
([Tang Palace BVIJ)E #1TI AFE L H
Tang Palace BVIW B A RIRANEE 2
MR ZEEE © (b)ARAR R B AR ERERE
ER-_BETZAEF+ A -+=HR—%3F
R R AR R E([FFaE D WEES
BR{E THBR A R FIER10% A M E £ 1
KA 15 A% A% AR VE 5k A R % 1,866,000
T AR —_ETAF+—A=Z+HHFLEE
EhES AR EIBRARREEZASH
BEFE HIFERERERSBERE
AR ED R M (c) Tang Palace BVIfi %
RETHORMABELAEE CHANESR
A R 35,014,000 7T JA & B #52 i% I 3R 1E
B R 1ED R AR 107,215,000 @ &
(AARRIEETRAFSREECET
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BVIR 2B B TR EE EAMBEA AR
50,000 L E{E 2 ERZEE -

EE(hE)ERAERALT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 A B e

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 26. LUROBERNTRRS

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan on 25 March 2011
which was revised on 22 March 2013 (“Share Award Plan”)
pursuant to which the board of directors may, subject to and
in accordance with the rules of the Share Award Plan, make
an award of shares to certain classes of eligible participants as
specified in the Share Award Plan, as determined by the board
of directors from time to time on the basis of the opinion of the
board of directors as to the proposed awardee’s contribution
and/or future contribution to the development and growth of the
Group. The shares and other trust fund for the implementation
of the Share Award Plan are administered by a trustee or
trustees (the “Share Award Plan Trustee”) to be appointed by
the Company.

Under the Share Award Plan, the board of directors shall
determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the
number of shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and
notify the Share Award Plan Trustee of the making of awards.
The Awarded Shares are either (1) transferred from any person
(other than the Group) by way of gift; (2) purchased by the
Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds received by way of
gift or for nominal consideration; (3) subscribed for or purchased
by the Share Award Plan Trustee out of the funds allocated by
the board of directors out of the Group’s resources, subject to
the terms and conditions of the rules of the Share Award Plan.
The Share Award Plan Trustee may purchase shares on the
Stock Exchange at the prevailing market price or off market, or
subscribe for new shares at par or at such other subscription
price as instructed by the board of directors out of the Group’s
contribution if the board of directors considers it appropriate to
do so.

On 25 January 2016, 2,100,000 had been awarded under the
Share Award Plan at HK$1.43 each, being the market price at
the shares were awarded. The total deemed consideration of
HK$3,003,000 (equivalent to RMB2,523,000) was recognised
as expense during the year in relation to the shares awarded
under the Share Award Plan as further detailed in note 24(b) to
the financial statements.
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27.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY AND A BUSINESS

On 30 June 2016 and 26 September 2016, the Group has
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, a supplemental
agreement and a subscription agreement (the “Investment
Agreements”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”).
Pursuant to the Investment Agreements, the Group agreed
to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the entire
share capital of Tang’s Cuisine (Macau) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company and a business of another subsidiary at
a total consideration of HK$15,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB12,600,000). The subsidiary and the business disposed
of are engaged in the operation of a restaurant in Hong Kong
and a restaurant in Macau, respectively. The consideration was
settled by issue of shares of the Purchaser in accordance with
the Investment Agreements. The shares held by the Group
were classified as an available-for-sale investment.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A B e

27. HE—BEMNBARR—EFXK

RZIE—RENA=ZTHERZZE—XFAh
A=-+/XB AEBHE—FBIE=H
(TEF DI EEWHE - Mrths RE
(& H=R]) - BRELRERE 5%
BRELENMEHREBEARN RN
BAREESRERCRM) —ABRAR
RATERA UERS—HEHBARME
% #aR (B /515,000,000 TT(HERAR
#12,600,0007T) - EHERNH B AR ME
BRI AREREELE —HEEUARR
RIS —HEE - RENESRERE
HEMmBITRONARER - XEEATE
ERBROHESBEAHEERSE -

2016
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRERZE 13 13,249
Inventories FE 1,161
Prepayments and other receivables TER FRIE K H A R YRR 2,666
Accruals and other payables FEFTE A R HALE 5B (1,108)
15,968
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary and a business & —REH B AT & —IBEK
Z B8 (3,368)
Total consideration BRE 12,600

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
and a business

HeFE

EAERLE—RNBAR R
—EEBZEHEREN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e Mt ik

28. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. RAHEMEALR

In the prior year, the Group had entered into a revised operation
agreement with the non-controlling interest for Tang & Rich
Holdings (I) Limited and its subsidiaries (“T&R (1)), 70%-owned
subsidiaries of the Group. The revised operation agreement
gave the non-controlling interest the rights to jointly operate T&R
(I) through joint ventures structure. The Group had therefore
shared the control with the joint venture partner on T&R (I) and
T&R () was accounted for as joint ventures thereafter though
there was no change of the Group’s equity interest in T&R ()).
In the opinion of the Directors, the change in such investments
structures for T&R (I) from subsidiaries to joint ventures enables
to have a closer financial touch with the joint venture partner
that enhances the development of the operation.

RE—FE AKBERKEZHERT0%
ME AR =R R () AR A E RENB L
AT EER()]) 2 R SR S — B (E
R E W - KRIEFTREE i T IRER
REBRRECERABARKLEER()Z
R o AN E F I B A 1ETT ARSI E B
() MERNERIESEEEE  BEASK
ERER()2RELEES EERR
ERNAEAFBRGELRIRERE
EEERAENERET ZERAE
RIS EBEE -

Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BE N RAE 13 11,043
Inventories A= 622
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 2 5 & H {th je U 718 % Fa {1 3018 2,960
Cash and cash equivalents RekBLEE 3,290
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFRIE (3,541)
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTI B A R FUE (14,223)
Tax payable FERTARIR (151)
Fair value of the remaining interest in T&R () ER(\EEH TER A AFE
Group =
Minority interest DB R e -
Gain/loss on change of control of subsidiaries ~ Hf/B A Tl e E) >
WaEE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of and net BER ALEHRB AT 2
outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHEREABESEER
respect of the deemed disposal of subsidiaries IR & RIH 4 ZE R H58 3,290
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29. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

30.

E-REFR

=

FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions

(@ On 25 January 2016, 2,100,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company were issued under the
Share Award Plan to the employees with no consideration
received.

(o)  In the current year, the consideration of RMB12,600,000
for the disposal of a subsidiary and a business was
settled by the issue of new shares of the Purchaser (note
27). The shares held by the Group were classified as an
available-for-sale investment.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its restaurants, staff quarters and
office premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for restaurants are negotiated for terms ranging from two to ten
years (2015: two to ten years), while leases for staff quarters
and office premises are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to three years (2015: one to three years).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

29.

30.
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GEEERERMET

BEAIBEERS

Bl == N R A E|
2,100,000 & A%0. 178 T 2 AR A
%H&Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁbéﬁmﬁé’éﬁ%

b) MAFE HBARNEBZREA
R#£12,600,00070E BB ITE H I

R &5 45 (Bt 5527) o REEBETHEAZD

DEEARHBERE o

ReEHEZH

AEBBALCEHELHELHEETERE -
EI{E%&#)J#’“*K@ Aﬁﬁfﬂfiﬁéﬁ%
+$) ﬁﬁ;l@%&#ﬂ#“*ﬁ%fﬂi’—iiﬁﬂ

BESNT—FE2=F(ZFT—0F: —F
E=F)e
RZZE—RF+-A=1—H  KX&E3

AAIHH A L S A T 2 HI R R R E
NOREHESHINWT -

2016

RMB’000

AR¥T
Within one year —ER 89,076 107,405
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEEERF(BIEERERF) 224,958 297,040
After five years hF% 78,525 115,002
392,559 519,447

The operating lease rentals of certain restaurants are based
solely on the sales of those restaurants or on the higher of a
fixed rental and contingent rent based on the sales of those
restaurants. In opinion of the directors, as the future sales
of those restaurants could not be accurately estimated, the
relevant rental commitments have not been included above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 30 above, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting

31.

BAESE

BRINHI EESOR I 2 R 2 M EAIESN - K&
BRHRERERDE  BERREREEE
RASE -

period:
2016
RMB’000
AR®T T
Contracted, but not provided for BRIAEREE 290 3,348
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BBAEXRS

(@ Inaddition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

(@) EAHIE - BRI HRE DT
£xe

REBHN A EEEE ST T T
FIEARS :

2016
—E-RE
RMB'000
AR®TR
Purchase of leasehold HEHEMEEER
improvements and equipment B3 (i) 691 1,316
Rental expenses paid to N —HE@EEREZ
a related company HER (ii) 1,032 1,032
Rental expenses paid to S F—EEEARZ
a related company HERY (i) 3,364 3,040
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@  (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

The selling price of the leasehold improvements was
made at pre-determined prices agreed between the
Group and Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Chiu Kwun”). Mr. Ku, a director of the Company, is the
beneficial owner of Chiu Kwun.

The rental expenses were charged by Dongguan
Well Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Well Excellent”) at rates agreed between the
Group and Dongguan Well Excellent. Mr. Yip, Mr. Chan
and Mr. Ku, directors and shareholders of the Company,
are also the directors and shareholders of Dongguan Well
Excellent.

The rental expenses were charged by Meco Group
Company Limited (“Meco Group”) at rates agreed between
the Group and Meco Group. Mr. Yip, Mr. Chan and Mr.
Ku, directors and shareholders of the Company, are also
the directors and shareholders of Meco Group.

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related
companies and joint ventures as at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 21 to the financial
statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments
and five highest paid employees are included in notes 8
and 9, respectively.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i) and (i)
above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

T -ARFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. ZERESzEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R EEIR - SELHEFNESE T EMIRE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
Financial assets cREE

Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial

receivables assets Total
EXR  AHHE
EBYHE SREE Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETrn ARETR

Available-for-sale AHRHERE

investments - 42,326 42,326 - - -
Trade receivables B S EWFE 16,069 - 16,069 12,667 - 12,667
Deposits and other meREMEKR

receivables (note 16) T8 38,428 - 38,428 32,848 - 32,848
Amounts due from joint WA ERRIHIE

ventures 2,914 - 2,914 1,703 - 1,703
Pledged time deposits BT SER 43,000 - 43,000 68,000 - 68,000
Time deposits THER 29,122 - 29,122 36,954 - 36,954
Cash and cash equivalents B&RBEZ(HE 400,390 - 400,390 297,873 - 297,873

529,923 42,326 572,249 450,045 - 450,045
Financial liabilities SREE

2016

—EB-RF

RMB’000

ARBTFR
Trade payables B SN IR 63,638 59,775

Other payables and accruals (note 20) FT AFERTRIE & E Ath FE N 3IB

ZemBEHZ20) 46,241 41,315
Amounts due to joint ventures BN & & ARIFKIA - 3,171
Amounts due to related companies FEISREE A RIFUEB 179 1,019
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITRE 41,040 65,268
151,098 170,548
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits, trade receivables, available-
for-sale investments, trade payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, deposits and other receivables, other payables and
accruals, balances with related companies and joint ventures
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of listed available-for-sale equity investment is
based on quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A B e

34. €RIENAFE

ERECHE  BRehReFE THE
R BHRUGR  AIHEERE - B5
IR - SHRRITEE - REMEME
WskIA ~ BB SRR R ERT5RIA ~ R
BRARMAERANGEHRIATE  BHE
FREERLD  TERBARZEFTAREH
M2 -

TREENMBEBENATENRIAARE
AIHEMEEAZRETRZEE M
FEBCETRRIHE 2 ©FHE © BFTAF
BERERAT IEREER

ERAHEERARE 2 R FETIRTS
WEH -
DNHEER

TRITAEBEERTAEZ AT EFERE
FAv

BRFETEZEE
R=—B-R"E+=-A=+—H

Available-for-sale investments: ~ AJ{EHERE -
Equity investments R E 23,846

= = 23,846

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair

value as at 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 i P
34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

35.

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, short-term deposits and interest-bearing bank
borrowing. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, available-for-sale investments,
balances with related companies, trade payables and other
payables, which arise directly from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors
meet periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. It is the
Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm
commitment is in place.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e ek

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 35. ¢ RiEMREEEERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Hong Kong Dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s
equity.

St LB ()
TRIREMAEEBRE T E 2 BN
HRASE 2 BRRANEN (AN EEEER

BREZAFEES) RAKE 2 a2 U
J_g‘_ o

2016 —E—XF

If Renminbi weakens against HK$ AR ATRE
If Renminbi strengthens against HK$ {4 A B 3 & T FHE

2015 —E-AfF

If Renminbi weakens against HK$  fi A R ¥ H & T RE
If Renminbi strengthens against HK$ i A R 3 & T FHE

5 1,730 -
(5) (1,730) -
5 2,027 -
(5) (2,027) -

*

Excluding retained profits
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the Group’s
exposure to bad debts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 2 e Mt ik

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases and trust
receipt loans. The Group’s policy is to maintain the Group at a
net current asset position.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

35.

On  Lessthan

TREREEEBRREEE)

FERREE)

HRAEERERRNAEEZE=TR
5 MBAELER -  AEBEANIHESE
REEEHRAR - EEAKENE 5 R
FENEERRBAAENRRNE -2
LIRS A M E 18 IR -

RBESRR

AEERAEREEFERBDESHETA
ERETRROER - ZTEZREY
RemTARSEEE(NE S EEFR)
ZEIMBEARRE EEXG ZARRER

=
£ °

AEEZBESBBERRITERLE
X MEHERCRERRIEER  #5
EoRBEEEBERE Rz T - AEE
CERREFAEBRNABEEFRL
AL

RBEYR - AEETRABNIHES
TERATOEAARITERRIE - 250 -

demand 1 month Total
REREE LPMEAR #@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥Trt ARETR
Trade payables B HRNFE - 63,638 63,638 = 59,775 59,775
Other payables and accruals Efth ERTHIE |2
JESTHIE - 46,241 46,241 - 41,315 41,315
Amounts due to joint ventures  E & &N IFIAE - - - 3,171 = 3,171
Amounts due to related B HERR)
companies W 179 - 179 1,019 - 1,019
Interest-bearing bank FTERBRITEE
borrowings 41,040 - 41,040 65,268 - 65,268
41,219 109,879 151,098 69,458 101,090 170,548
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35.

T -ARFFR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and risk associate with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance the overall capital structure of the Group through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the raising of
new bank loans.

173

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

St 25 e B

CREREEREREEE)

EXER

AEEEAEENTIEAREERELE

BERENIERE  UHIFBRNERLL
KPS FHEEEMEBRITRREE -

AEBEEEEENERY B R EEHEGRAT
M AR B E R AR RS R
o RTHFIABRERGER  AEET
BEREXN TRRAKRE  MBREESR
AREBTHRD - BE-_T—RF+=
A=t—BE-Z—AF+-A=+—H
IFFER - REREENBER  BERIB
RIGRELR -

AEBOAASBEERSRESSER
AAREA ARG S - HERRTR
K- BERRERF - SERR A IS H
R -

ARREEEMEHELEE - ELAEH
THEHN—FD  EFEEBEARAEAR
HEZEREARENER - REEENRZ
& ARESEBRIRERE - BITHRG
REEFRTERTEAEERENER
RERE -

EE(hE)ERAERALT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. A TR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REBARATNRER RO EAARE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2016
RMB’000
AR®EF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIRE 7,097 7,097
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE ] 93,349 74,686
Total non-current assets ERENEELTE 100,446 81,783
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments Hfth pE UG SR8 K TE 5 R E 218 199
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEE 158 22
376 221
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables HAb T FIR 15,373 197
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (ARE)RE (14,997) 24
Net assets BEFE 85,449 81,807
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEBITIRAR 35,586 35,409
Other reserves H A f# 49,863 46,398
Total equity B 85,449 81,807
YIP Shu Ming CHAN Man Wai
A BRI &
Director Director
=] 5=
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COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. AATHIEEARR (EF)

ARRFEEZBENT

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2017.

—E-RFEFER

175

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-ZT—H%—A—H 35,255 = 10,495 45,750
Profit for the year FREF - = 29,659 29,659
Other comprehensive income FREMEERF]
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation HERINEEMELER
of foreign operations BE L EE - 197 = 197
Total comprehensive income for the year A Z EHFI4E%E - 197 29,659 29,856
Issue of shares under share award plan ~ 1RIE %7 225+ 21241 TRR (D 2,780 = = 2,780
Final 2014 dividend declared ER-ZT-MERARE (31,988) = = (31,988)
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z—R4F
1 January 2016 TZA=+—HR
RZZE—~E—FA—H 6,047 197 40,154 46,398
Profit for the year FRHHM - - 60,625 60,625
Other comprehensive income FREMZERF]
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HAEEINEEMELH
foreign operations bR ER - 688 - 688
Total comprehensive income FRAZHE MR
for the year - 688 60,625 61,313
Issue of shares under share RIER (5 1B T 2121 TR D
award plan 2,346 - - 2,346
Final 2015 dividend declared BR-_E-RERBRE - - (38,823) (38,823)
Interim 2016 special dividend ZERERHERIRE - - (21,371) (21,371)
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—RF
+=-A=1+—8 8,393 885 40,585 49,863
37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. HEMBE®E

APBHRROEEFEN T —tLF=H
B R IR T o

BEE(FE)ERERLHE



SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
4755 & R 32

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AREBERFAAEATBEENEERE - UK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as & & - BENMIEIEHER @ o8k B &3 T2
extracted from the published audited financial statements and the — HRE =X 75K RIBREFRA

Prospectus, is set out below.

RESULTS E35

2016
—E-RE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Revenue Wz 1,248,455 1,088,147 989,048 902,420 824,712
Other income and gain, net Hip A Rz 558 33,716 29,486 25,861 20,627 18,386
Cost of inventories consumed 2 FEF &R A (463,580) (434,745) (402,840) (380,162) (338,536)
Staff costs BIMA (337,491) (302,455 (256,279) (237,601) (206,917)
Depreciation of items of ERN S
property, plant and HAFE
equipment (55,306) (57,200) (55,812) (49,785) (39,800)
Utilities and consumables NEFRHEFRT REFED (66,780) (62,515) (58,153) (51,525) (52,362)
Rental and related expenses 4 RIREAR X (112,815) (117,226) (105,918) (88,123) (r2,773)
Other expenses HFx (92,990) (75,964) (68,619) (65,572) (57,453)
Share of results of a joint FEIEEE N A)EE
ventures (6,961) (2,435) - - -
Finance costs BE KA (978) (509) (197) (282) -
Profit before tax FiAT &R 145,270 64,584 67,091 49,997 75,257
Income tax expense FTSTAY (42,997) (15,995) (14,891) (13,144) (20,425)
Profit for the year REE A 102,273 48,589 52,200 36,853 54,832
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company RRFHER A 100,992 48,589 53,200 36,853 54,832
Non-controlling interests IR 1,281 = (1,000) = =
102,273 48,589 52,200 36,853 54,832
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFERER
INTERESTS

2016

—E-AF

RMB’000

ARBTFT
Total assets BEHBE 773,464 699,417 597,744 522,415 500,161
Total liabilities BEEE (294,157) (277,757) (194,428) (149,998) (135,107)
Non-controling interests IRV 2 (1,581) - - (1,000) -

477,726 421,660 403,316 371,417 365,054
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i

AGM
BRBEFRE

Articles of Association

AEEEAR

Audit Committee

BERLB®

Board
)

CCT Tenancy Agreements
CCTHE &

Chiu Kwun
fig=pacs

Company

ZA/NS]

Controlling Shareholders

PERACR

T —RFFR

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 2 June 2017

ARABRWRZE—+FRNA BB ZRFBFAG

articles of association of the Company adopted on 25 March 2011 and as
amended from time to time

ARRRZTB——F=A -+ HBRRA MG IEHERT 2 B =12 408

audit committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with written
terms of reference (amended on 1 January 2016)
RRABRZE——FZAZTHAKN U2 EZEZES EREGEEBE
HE(EN-_T—R"F—H—BIELE)

board of directors of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited

BEE(PE)ERAERATERS

tenancy agreements entered into between the Group as lessee and Meco
Group or Dongguan Well Excellent (as the case may be) as landlord
REBUERABA) EESEBX(RFIBERAME) REE(ERETE)
I E R

Chiu Kwun Engineering (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., a company established in
the PRC with limited liability on 4 April 1990 and indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. KU Hok Chiu, being one of our executive directors and substantial
shareholders

HEFABEMORYDAERAR  £E— W NWTFEHAMOBEFRBEKZ
ZERAF  ARTESELIERRIBBEEEELZERR

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited
EE(PEDZERER AR

Mr. CHAN Man Wai, Mr. YIP Shu Ming, Mr. KU Hok Chiu, Best Active
Investments Limited, Current Success Investments Limited and Bright Mind
Investments Limited collectively known as the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company

PRI AE - BERIRRSLA - HERBYLAE - Best Active Investments Limited
Current Success Investments Limited &2Bright Mind Investments Limited -

Y RANSIEA G T
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GLOSSARY
i

Corporate Governance Code
EEEFA

CPPCC
[2477)

Dongguan Well Excellent
RciE

EGM
BRFFRIRE

FY2015
—E-RFYBFE

FY2016
ZEANFMBFE

Group
REE

HK Well Excellent
BB

Listing Date
R

Listing Rules
EmRA

TANG PALACE (CHINA) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Corporate governance code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

ETARAINE4FTE 2 R R E AT A

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

REARBGHE S

Dongguan Well Excellent Hotel Management Services Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 27 October 2006 and wholly
owned by HK Well Excellent
REREREEERBERAT  — KR _ZEEXRF+A+HHEF
BRI ERAR - HEBRELERSR

extraordinary general meeting

BREFRIRE

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-ZT-—AF+-A=-t+—ALEFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-ZT—F+-A=-t+—ALEFE

Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries

B (PE)ERARARRENB AR

Well Excellent Development Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHAN Man Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming, 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu
BEZRABRLAF  —FKREBIMRINERREZER QT - HERX
BEAE  ERALEEREEBEEDFIEBS0% - 35%5K15%

date on which the trading of the Company’s securities commenced, i.e. 19
April 2011
AAREFABKEECAS I ——FWA+NH

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X FRE 7 L AR A
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GLOSSARY
il B

Meco Group

EEEY !

Model Code
RS

Nomination Committee

REERE®

Non-compete undertaking
THFAH

PRC
T

Prospectus

B ERE

Remuneration Committee

¥MEEE

T —RFFR

Meco Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 14 July 1992 and owned as to 50% by Mr. CHAN Man
Wai, 35% by Mr. YIP Shu Ming and 15% by Mr. KU Hok Chiu
%%Egﬁ@“*’—ﬁﬂ—hh—ﬁkﬂtﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁimﬁ

NAE] HRXELE - BRASERERBEESFIEFS0% - 35%
&15%

Model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHARAEAOPTE T AESTEITEFRH 2 IRETH

nomination committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference
RAARRZE——F=-A-THBRUZREEZES ARAEEBE
#E

an irrevocable non-compete undertaking in favour of the Group pursuant to
which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not directly or indirectly, carry
on, invest in or be engaged in any business which would or may compete
with the business of the Group

W$El¢ﬁ2$7@@Tﬁ5%= B BERREE TS EREL
BIRETT - RE RN FE M EREEEGHEF A ST 2 EG

People’s Republic of China
RREE A RHANE

the Company’s prospectus dated 7 April 2011 for the initial public offering
AARIHR_ZE——FHAtEZER AREEHRER

remuneration committee of the Company established on 25 March 2011 with
written terms of reference
RAARR_E——F=A-THBRIUZFMNEES - AERAFEEBE
#E

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
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Share Award Plan share award plan adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011 and revised

M tn B2@h =t 2l on 22 March 2013
ARRRZE——F=A+THRARZB—=F=A = +ZHKIE:])
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Share Options Scheme share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 March 2011
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Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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